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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm Philip Reed,

          3  and Chair of the Consumer Affairs Committee. This is

          4  our first hearing of the new season and I appreciate

          5  everyone coming.

          6                 Before we officially start, I would

          7  say to the towers that next time we have a hearing

          8  about this, I may ask you to go out and tow all my

          9  colleagues in so we have full attendance. So leave

         10  your cards and we'll see what we can do. I don't

         11  know about the mileage fee from Far Rockaway but

         12  we'll work on something.

         13                 I would like to begin today by

         14  recognizing my two colleagues who are here with me,

         15  Joe Addabbo from Queens and Oliver Koppell from the

         16  Bronx. Thank you very much. I'm sure other members

         17  will be coming in.

         18                 Looks like everybody who has wanted

         19  to speak has signed in. If not, please see the

         20  Sergeant-At-Arms.

         21                 This morning we're going to be

         22  focusing on the towing industry.

         23                 As many will recall, we held a towing

         24  hearing last November. A few of the issues we

         25  unearth at the hearing have become even more
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          2  significant since then and we believe that they

          3  deserve a fresh examination this year.

          4                 We have three main objectives today.

          5                 First we're going to get a report

          6  from the Administration on the Tow Vehicle

          7  Inspection Program that was discussed at last

          8  November. At that time, Assistant Commissioner Paul

          9  Toole explained, in November she explained that they

         10  were reviving a requirement that all tow vehicles be

         11  inspected for relicensing.

         12                 The tow industry was upset by this

         13  decision, and the resulting process. So we'd like to

         14  hear how it all turned out.

         15                 We're especially interested in how

         16  many towers lost their licenses, as a result of the

         17  new inspection process and how this will affect the

         18  police programs. We'll get the Administration's

         19  perspective in their report and we anticipate the

         20  towing industry will also want to testify on this

         21  topic.

         22                 Next we're going to be taking

         23  testimony on Intro. 143, which would raise the rates

         24  for arterial towers in New York City.

         25                 As we'll hear, arterial towers are
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          2  those who tow disabled vehicles from the arterial

          3  roads around our City.

          4                 It appears that these towers did not

          5  receive a rate increase in 2001 when towers for the

          6  DARP and Rotow Programs did.

          7                 Today we're going to assess whether

          8  such an increase is warranted, and if so, how much

          9  the raise would be appropriate.

         10                 This is very much an open question,

         11  and we'll be deciding a lot of this based on

         12  testimony we hear today.

         13                 Finally, we're going to hear about

         14  Intro. 138. This is a bill that the Mayor is

         15  advancing, which would push back registration dates

         16  for towing businesses and tow truck drivers. We

         17  studied a version on this bill, Intro. 562 last

         18  session. I believe DCA will be explaining the

         19  amendments they have made since then.

         20                 So, thank you all very much for

         21  coming today. I want to welcome both the Department

         22  of Consumer Affairs and the NYPD to the witness

         23  table.

         24                 Thank you, and please all introduce

         25  yourselves, and you may have decided who is going to
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          2  speak first but let us all know who is here.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I'll

          4  start. I'm Pauline Toole. I'm an Assistant

          5  Commissioner at the City's Department of Consumer

          6  Affairs, and I'm joined by Assistant Commissioner

          7  Alba Pico who oversees licensing and collection,

          8  Director of Legislative Affairs, Andy Eiler; Legal

          9  Counsel Karen Miller, and our Director of

         10  Enforcement Pansy Mullings, who brought with her a

         11  database of all the license renewal filing and

         12  inspections.

         13                 MS. PRATI: I'm Deputy Inspector Lisa

         14  Prati, from my Chief of Patrol's Office. I have with

         15  me Lieutenant Brian Franklin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Deputy Inspector?

         17                 MS. PRATI: Lisa Prati, Office of the

         18  Chief of Patrol.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Can you spell your

         20  last name for me?

         21                 MS. PRATI: P as in Peter, R-a-t-i.

         22                 With me is Lieutenant Brian Franklin.

         23  Director John Battles, from the Parking Enforcement

         24  District, and Whitney Allen, who oversees the

         25  Arterial Tow Program.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: The

          4  Police Department is going to go first.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          6                 MS. PRATI: Good morning, Mr.

          7  Chairman, and members of the Council. On behalf of

          8  Police Commissioner Raymond W. Kelly, I would like

          9  to thank you for this opportunity to speak with you

         10  about towing industry issues involving the New York

         11  City Police Department.

         12                 I am Deputy Inspector Lisa Prati, the

         13  Commanding Officer of the Resource Management

         14  section of the office of the Chief of Patrol.

         15                 Joining me are Director John Battles

         16  of the NYPD's parking enforcement district, and

         17  Lieutenant Brian Franklin, also from the Resource

         18  Management Section.

         19                 I would first like to give you a

         20  brief overview of the towing programs that the NYPD

         21  are the monitors or enforcers in partnership with

         22  the Department of Consumer Affairs, and will then

         23  address some of the questions which the Council may

         24  have on these programs.

         25                 There are three towing programs in
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          2  which the NYPD is significantly involved - Rotation

          3  Tow, or Rotow, Directed Accident Response, or DARP,

          4  and Arterial Tow.

          5                 The Rotation Tow Program is utilized

          6  to remove unoccupied stone or apparently abandoned

          7  vehicles on City streets.

          8                 These vehicles are deemed to be in

          9  police custody, and precinct personnel contact

         10  participating towing companies on a rotating basis

         11  to tow the vehicle to their storage facility.

         12                 If the vehicle is not claimed by the

         13  owner within 30 days, the towing company must

         14  deliver the vehicle to the Police Department

         15  property clerk.

         16                 Note that the Rotation Tow Program

         17  does not apply in some situations where vehicles are

         18  apparently abandoned.

         19                 For example, when they are needed as

         20  evidence, or they are derelict vehicles having a

         21  value of less than $1,250 which are removed under

         22  the Department of Sanitation's Derelict Auto

         23  Program.

         24                 DARP is utilized to remove vehicles

         25  involved in an accident that cannot safely be
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          2  driven, and to have a gross vehicle wait of less

          3  than 15,000 pounds.

          4                 Dispatch of authorized towing

          5  companies is performed by the NYPD's communication

          6  section on a rotating basis within geographic zones.

          7                 The vehicles are not considered to be

          8  in police custody, although in general the vehicle

          9  owner does not have the discretion to choose which

         10  tow company may respond. Owners of vehicles weighing

         11  15,000 pounds or more may choose their own towing

         12  company.

         13                 Arterial tow is a program that

         14  provides towing and/or road service to all New York

         15  City highways, tunnels and bridges. Based on their

         16  resources and abilities, towing companies are given

         17  a permit granting them an exclusive right to tow all

         18  accident vehicles, abandoned vehicles, stolen

         19  vehicles, disabled and derelict vehicles in an

         20  authorized arterial highway segment.

         21                 The vehicle is never considered to be

         22  in police custody and dispatch of the towing company

         23  is performed by the communication section.

         24                 Any towing company participating in

         25  any of these programs must be licensed by the
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          2  Department of Consumer Affairs. Participants in

          3  arterial tow must also be investigated and approved

          4  by the Police Department.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me. Can I

          6  interrupt you here?

          7                 The vehicle is never considered to be

          8  in police custody. And the dispatch of the towing is

          9  performed by the communication section, but that's

         10  the communication section of the Police Department.

         11                 MS. PRATI: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         13                 MS. PRATI: With respect of some

         14  issues of concern to the Council, one of the most

         15  important goals of regulating the towing industry is

         16  to deter the practice of chasing to accident scenes

         17  by towing companies seeking business.

         18                 We believe that the creation of DARP

         19  and the elimination of the option for motorists to

         20  call their own towing companies has been successful

         21  in meeting the primary goal of reducing fatalities

         22  caused by tow trucks racing to accident scenes.

         23                 The program significantly reduced

         24  chasing and soliciting at accident scenes. Although

         25  these practices have not been completely eliminated.
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          2                 However, it is difficult to quantify

          3  incidents of chasing, especially since chasing often

          4  cannot be separated from other traffic violations.

          5                 A tow truck passing a red light may

          6  in fact be chasing but without a confession from the

          7  driver, an accident right around the corner would be

          8  difficult to confirm the incident as chasing.

          9                 The Police Department and the

         10  Department of Consumer Affairs both have

         11  responsibilities for enforcing the city's towing

         12  programs and work in tandem. Both police officers

         13  and DCA inspectors have the authority to enforce

         14  towing regulations.

         15                 However, police officers primarily

         16  enforce regulations regarding the directed accident

         17  response program and traffic related regulations,

         18  such as unlicensed operation.

         19                 The general licensing and inspection

         20  of companies are handled by DCA. With respect to

         21  DARP and Rotow, the Police Department Office of the

         22  Chief of Patrol has assigned liaisons to the DCA to

         23  address interagency concerns.

         24                 The officers consult with DCA on

         25  issues that arise and liaison with industry
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          2  representatives regarding their concerns.

          3                 The officers transit rotation tow

          4  list informational changes to precinct commands and

          5  monitor DARP compliance.

          6                 The Arterial Tow Program is fully

          7  managed by the Police Department and has a full-time

          8  program coordinator assigned from the Chief of

          9  Transportation's Parking Enforcement District.

         10                 Operational enforcement and

         11  inspection of arterial tow companies, premises and

         12  equipment is primarily conducted by the highway

         13  district with complaints about arterial towing

         14  companies referred to the parking enforcement

         15  district.

         16                 The program coordinator is in regular

         17  contact with DCA to address complaints, licensing

         18  issues and other matters as they arise.

         19                 Finally, with respect to the

         20  legislation you are considering today, our review of

         21  the bill raises a question regarding whether the

         22  intent of the bill is to set new fees for the

         23  arterial tow program or to establish a ceiling

         24  within which fees would be set by regulation. We

         25  request clarification of the intent.
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          2                 Thank you for allowing us the

          3  opportunity to speak about these programs, and we

          4  would be pleased to answer any questions you may

          5  have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very much

          7  for your testimony. Before we hear from Assistant

          8  Commissioner Toole, I just have a few questions and

          9  I want to introduce other members of the Council and

         10  my colleagues on this Committee. Our newest member

         11  of the Committee is Vincent Gentile from Brooklyn.

         12  Welcome, Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman. It's a pleasure to join this

         15  Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         17                 Diana Reyna is also here, she's

         18  another bi-borough member of the Council, from

         19  Brooklyn and Queens, thank you.

         20                 Council Member Charles Barron. And

         21  Council Member Charles Barron -- I thought I heard

         22  somebody else's voice -- from Brooklyn. Thank you

         23  for being here.

         24                 You said in your testimony the

         25  Arterial Tow Program is fully managed by the Police

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  Department and has a full-time program coordinator

          3  assigned from the Chief of Transportation Parking

          4  Enforcement District. Who is that person?

          5                 MS. PRATI: Director John Valles and

          6  Whitney Allen, who is behind me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Director John

          8  Battles. Are you Mr. Battles?

          9                 MR. VALLES: Yes, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         11                 You are the Director of the Arterial

         12  Program?

         13                 MR. VALLES: I'm the Director of the

         14  Parking Enforcement District.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Could you come

         16  forward, please?

         17                 This says you're a full-time program

         18  coordinator. Is that what you are?

         19                 MR. VALLES: Yes. The program is under

         20  my jurisdiction, yes.

         21                 So your title is Program Coordinator

         22  for Arterial?

         23                 MR. VALLES: Well, I'm the Director.

         24  That's part of one of the programs that I run in my

         25  district.
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          2                 The full-time coordinator is Whitney

          3  Allen, Traffic Supervisor Whitney Allen, right here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. I'm sorry,

          5  could you tell me her name?

          6                 MR. VALLES: Whitney Allen.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Whitney Allen?

          8                 MR. VALLES: That's correct, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you're a member

         10  of the Police Department? We will refer to you as

         11  officer, commissioner?

         12                 MR. VALLES: She's the Traffic

         13  Supervisor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Traffic Supervisor,

         15  okay. Don't let him hide in the back there.

         16                 So, I'm sorry, you are, sir?

         17                 MR. VALLES: I'm the Director. My name

         18  is John Valles.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Velez?

         20                 MR. VALLES: Valles, V-a-l-l-e-s.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: V-a-l-l-e?

         22                 MR. VALLES: V-a-l-l-e-s.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: E-S. And she

         24  reports to you?

         25                 MR. VALLES: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Also, I can't

          3  help noticing in your testimony, Inspector Prati,

          4  you said something about the red light. Is it ever

          5  okay to run a red light?

          6                 MS. PRATI: No, it's never okay to run

          7  a red light.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So you would stop a

          9  tow truck running a red light.

         10                 MS. PRATI: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And give them a

         12  ticket for that?

         13                 MS. PRATI: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But it would be

         15  another infraction if you were to be able to

         16  recognize or to see that they were chasing; is that

         17  what you're saying?

         18                 MS. PRATI: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That would be

         20  something different.

         21                 MS. PRATI: That would be something

         22  different. We would be able to write them a notice

         23  of violation for racing to the scene of an accident.

         24  Unfortunately it's hard to prove.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see.
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          2                 MS. PRATI: Unless there's an accident

          3  close by.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

          5                 Assistant Commissioner Toole.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

          7  sir.

          8                 Thank you for having this hearing.

          9  The Committee has before it a bill to change the

         10  expiration date of licenses for tow truck companies

         11  and trucks from December 31st in odd number years,

         12  to April 30th of even numbered years, to change the

         13  expiration date for tow truck drivers' licenses to

         14  October 31st of even numbered years.

         15                 This bill was modified somewhat from

         16  the previously submitted legislation in order to

         17  accommodate the industry's comments and the timing

         18  of the renewal.

         19                 The goal of changing the dates is to

         20  reduce the burden on DCA's licensing center, which

         21  currently processes 19,000 licenses during the end

         22  of the year period.

         23                 Spreading the volume of license

         24  expirations more evenly throughout the year will

         25  reduce the workload of our licensing personnel and
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          2  also reduce the processing time for licensees.

          3                 As reported to the Council at the

          4  November hearing, DCA was prepared to fully

          5  implement all existing requirements for renewing tow

          6  licenses.

          7                 We had previously informed the

          8  licensees that DCA could not guarantee that licensed

          9  applications and renewals filed after December 1st,

         10  2003 would be completely processed by December 31st,

         11  2003, and that companies and trucks without valid

         12  licenses and medallions on December 31st would be

         13  removed from the DARP and Rotow lists.

         14                 DCA's records show that there were

         15  557 licensed tow truck companies with 1,935 trucks

         16  and 2,891 drivers in December 2003.

         17                 By December 1st, approximately 25

         18  percent or 111 companies with 270 drivers -- 270

         19  trucks that filed their renewal paperwork.

         20                 Inspections of tow trucks began on

         21  November 10th, 2003, and by December 1st, 129 trucks

         22  had passed inspection.

         23                 As of the December 31st, 2003

         24  expiration date, there were 345 companies with 972

         25  trucks and 1,524 drivers who had filed their renewal
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          2  paperwork. 1,126 trucks had passed inspection and

          3  had their medallions issued. The number of trucks

          4  inspected is higher than the number of renewal

          5  applications because it also includes new applicants

          6  and exempt trucks.

          7                 The inspections DCA scheduled are

          8  mandated by Section 20-501 of the Administrative

          9  Code which prohibits the issuance of a tow license

         10  unless every tow truck to be used by the applicant

         11  is found to be fit for operation and in compliance

         12  with provisions of the vehicle and traffic law.

         13                 Really wouldn't be possible to verify

         14  compliance without actually looking at the truck to

         15  see if the mandated safety equipment was working,

         16  then to ensure that the information painted on the

         17  truck met legal requirement.

         18                 The inspection consisted of ensuring

         19  the trucks existed, possessed current registration

         20  and insurance forms, that the required lettering was

         21  properly sized and displayed and that the necessary

         22  equipment was operable, that DARP participants have

         23  had a required flatbed truck, and that the medallion

         24  was affixed to the assigned truck.

         25                 The DCA is aware that some companies
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          2  move medallions from a truck that has been licensed

          3  to another that hasn't in order to reduce the number

          4  of trucks paid for.

          5                 Physically affixing the medallion

          6  during the inspection cuts down on this chicanery.

          7                 DCA consulted with various

          8  enforcement agencies, including the NYPD, the

          9  Marshal's Office, the Sheriff's Department and the

         10  Department of Transportation and Sanitation.

         11                 We described our intent to follow the

         12  licensing law requirements, and were met with great

         13  cooperation by each of those departments.

         14                 The NYPD reviewed the availability of

         15  DARP and Rotow participants who had renewed licenses

         16  and identified tow areas where there might be a need

         17  for increased coverage.

         18                 DCA worked with tow companies to

         19  ensure that there were no coverage gaps. As of

         20  December 31st, 2003, DCA forwarded to the NYPD a

         21  list of 102 companies with 1,572 trucks to be

         22  removed from the Rotow program and the DCA removed

         23  106 companies with 608 trucks from the DARP list.

         24                 Subsequent to December 31st, DCA

         25  vigorously enforced the Tow Licensing Law and DCA

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  inspectors issued violations and seized 23

          3  illegally-operating tow trucks, including most

          4  recently a truck from a Nassau County-based company

          5  that was operating in Queens, and two unlicensed

          6  salvage trucks.

          7                 It should be noted that the

          8  Nassau-based company has been licensed by DCA since

          9  at least 1994, had submitted its renewal application

         10  on January 6th, and the truck had not passed

         11  inspection.

         12                 In January, DCA experienced a flood

         13  of new renewal applications and an additional 119

         14  companies filed, bringing the total of licensed

         15  companies to 464 with 1,396 trucks and 2,219

         16  drivers.

         17                 As of January 1st, 2004, 1,420 trucks

         18  had passed inspection and had medallions issued.

         19  With only a few exceptions, principally for new

         20  companies and moved companies, DCA was able to

         21  fulfill the promise of issuing licenses and

         22  inspecting trucks that filed before December 1st,

         23  2003.

         24                 DCA appreciates all of those tow

         25  companies that filed their license applications on
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          2  time, and that cooperated with our inspectors in

          3  making any changes to their trucks that were

          4  necessary.

          5                 In order to establish a level playing

          6  field for those companies that comply with the law,

          7  the letter and the spirit of the law, DCA is

          8  committed to fulfilling its obligation to enforce

          9  the law against those who, for whatever reason, seek

         10  to operate outside the law.

         11                 We thank you for your interest and

         12  would be pleased to answer any questions you may

         13  have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         15                 Ms. Toole, are there any tow trucks

         16  now that the Department of Consumer Affairs still

         17  has?

         18                 I know there was quite a bit of

         19  publicity about taking, actually towing tow trucks,

         20  getting them off the streets, DCA, are there any

         21  that have not been retrieved?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Is the

         23  question are there any trucks DCA sees that have not

         24  been returned to their owners?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: There's

          3  one truck that has not been returned to its owner,

          4  because its owner has not come and paid the

          5  requisite penalties and hasn't retrieved it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And there was a

          7  storage fee that was being charged?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: It's a

          9  daily fee. And I'm looking to an enforcement

         10  director.

         11                 We don't know what the amount is, but

         12  we'll find that for you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I just think it's

         14  somewhat ironic that we're talking about towing fees

         15  and storage fees and I'm sure these trucks are over

         16  15,000, 10,000 pounds, and I want to know if we're

         17  charging them the same amount of money that they

         18  charge the regular, normal consumer. So, I would

         19  like to know what is happening with that.

         20                 Other than this one truck, all the

         21  other trucks in the City of New York that are out

         22  there now are relicensed, inspected, and we got a

         23  clean slate?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: There's

         25  a difference between the number of trucks we see,
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          2  which I thought was your first question --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It was.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: -- And

          5  had they been returned.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: And

          8  then if the second question is, is everyone who

          9  filed their paperwork at DCA to be licensed, have

         10  they been inspected and had their medallions

         11  affixed?

         12                 We have the information as of January

         13  31st, and if people have come in in the first week

         14  of February, you know, I think they probably have

         15  not had --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, I'm talking

         17  about, let's use the January 31st date.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Is

         19  there anyone who came in by January 31st has had

         20  their, and had their paperwork in order, would have

         21  had date set for inspection.

         22                 Why don't I turn it over to Pansy

         23  Mullings.

         24                 MS. MULLINGS: We still have

         25  inspections schedules.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please identify

          3  yourself for the record.

          4                 MS. MULLINGS: My name is Pansy

          5  Mullings. I'm the Director of Enforcement.

          6                 We still have trucks scheduled for

          7  inspection I believe next week, and it's a lot less,

          8  so we're still inspecting trucks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         10                 But you would anticipate having those

         11  trucks inspected and back on the road in a week?

         12                 MS. MULLINGS: Assuming that they have

         13  all their lettering correct and all their paperwork,

         14  yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I just

         18  want to amend, apparently yesterday there were

         19  additional two trucks that were seized, the salvage

         20  trucks, and they have not yet been retrieved. The

         21  other truck that I was referring to was seized some

         22  time in early January and hasn't been retrieved.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The response, there

         24  was a great deal of media about the fact that you

         25  were taking these trucks off the street, and,
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          2  frankly, I, as the Chair, was supportive of what you

          3  were trying to do.

          4                 We heard in November the strong

          5  suggestion that they get the paperwork in by

          6  December 1st, in order to have their trucks back and

          7  licensed in the appropriate time.

          8                 There was a lot of discussions about

          9  the cost of doing this. Is this new proposal that

         10  the administration has about changing the dates, is

         11  that to help address this issue?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         13  Changing the dates will reduce the burden on our

         14  licensing staff.

         15                 We currently process 19,000 different

         16  renewal or new applications right before December

         17  31st. By switching those dates we can make sure that

         18  those things happen much more quickly that there

         19  aren't long waiting lines.

         20                 The other advantage, because the

         21  trucks have to be physically inspected. It is a lot

         22  easier to do that in warmer weather than in

         23  December.

         24                 We know there were fears raised about

         25  would the DCA have the resources to conduct the
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          2  inspections and in fact those fears I think were

          3  unfounded because we were able to schedule the

          4  inspections as required for the larger companies. We

          5  went out to their companies and actually inspected

          6  them in the field, and were able to meet the

          7  requirements of the law.

          8                 So, change would be good in terms of

          9  having an efficient process of licensing and renewal

         10  applications, but it won't change the cost of doing

         11  that to DCA.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're saying that

         13  the date change for towers relicensing would make it

         14  easier and simpler for the Administration, for DCA,

         15  yes, right?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         17  sir.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Have you discussed

         19  this with the industry folks and found out if it's

         20  going to be easier for them, or more onerous or how

         21  they feel about this?

         22                 I remember when we had this

         23  discussion preliminarily, it seemed that this was a

         24  problem for the towers, so I'm curious if between

         25  the hearing we had in November and the hearing that
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          2  we're having today, if DCA has reached out and had a

          3  conversation with the industry to see what their

          4  point of view might be?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I know

          6  that the agency has had informal discussions with a

          7  variety of towers. One of the reasons we changed the

          8  dates in the new version of the bill was a respond

          9  to the industry's concern, and so we thought we did

         10  what they had asked us to do in that respect.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: In terms of the

         12  administration of the Arterial Tow Program, I think

         13  we've been introduced to two people who, would it be

         14  fair to say, manage the program?

         15                 Could you address the issue similarly

         16  that I have about do you meet with the towing

         17  industry to find out how their sense is of it being

         18  managed? And when you say managed, exactly what does

         19  that mean?

         20                 MR. VALLES: The program is an

         21  exclusive patrols on our arterial highways. Each of

         22  the tow companies have been selected to be on those

         23  highways.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Could you explain

         25  for some people who might not know exactly, what is
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          2  an arterial highway?

          3                 MR. VALLES: An arterial highway is

          4  actually the highways such as the FDR Drive, the

          5  Grand Central Parkway, the Long Island Expressway,

          6  the BQE, the Belt Parkway, the Cross Bronx. Those

          7  are the arterial highways. They're highways that

          8  people transfer from one borough to another.

          9                 So we have these tow truck operators

         10  on the highways patrolling the highways and handling

         11  disabled and accidents on the highway.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, in other words,

         13  there is a tow truck going up and down the road.

         14                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And if a car is

         16  broken down, does the police car have to come along

         17  first?

         18                 MR. VALLES: No, if it's disabled,

         19  unless it's in a dangerous condition, a highway

         20  patrol will be dispatched to it. If they happen upon

         21  the disabled, they have full authorization to remove

         22  the vehicle, as long as the motor is still with the

         23  vehicle.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If the tow trucks

         25  that are patrolling that arterial pass by, they have

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  authority to just then pick up the car and take it

          3  off the highway?

          4                 MR. VALLES: Yes. As long as the

          5  motorist sits with the vehicle.

          6                 The driver is with the vehicle,

          7  because they have to sign the authorization for the

          8  removal of the vehicle.

          9                 In the absence of the motorist, then

         10  a police officer needs to be on the scene and sign

         11  that authorization.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So what else is

         13  involved in the management of this?

         14                 MR. VALLES: We check, the highway

         15  district checks to make sure the operators of those

         16  tow trucks are indeed licensed. They also check that

         17  the tow truck that is on the highway is also

         18  registered and licensed by the Department of

         19  Consumer Affairs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But you're not out

         21  patrolling the highway yourself to see how things

         22  are happening out there, or maybe you are? Is that a

         23  part of the management?

         24                 MR. VALLES: Part of the management,

         25  highway district is the one that patrols the
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          2  arterial and any administrative problems in regard

          3  to the particular tow company or the tow operator

          4  they will then contact my office and let us know

          5  what the problem is, and we'll try to get a hold of

          6  the operator of that particular company to rectify

          7  the problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And how would you

          9  know whether there is a problem with them?

         10                 MR. VALLES: A police officer, a

         11  highway district officer will be on the scene and he

         12  will articulate to us what the problem is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Could you get an

         14  example of what a problem would be?

         15                 MR. VALLES: Well, there are times

         16  that, they have a response time that has to be

         17  within 30 minutes. If a highway officer calls in for

         18  the two-hour communication session for a tow truck,

         19  the authorized tow truck, and he remains on the

         20  scene with that disabled, and it takes him longer

         21  than the 30 minutes, then we'd be notified that

         22  there was a late response by the company, and the we

         23  in turn will take administrative access against

         24  them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Any other way of
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          2  managing or seeing if they're problematic?

          3                 MR. VALLES: Well, we do monitor them.

          4  We do monitor any complaints, the complaints in

          5  regard to overcharging to the motorist, they do

          6  carry what they call a bill of sale, the tow slip,

          7  rather, and the back of those tow slips, we do have

          8  a bill of rights where the motorist is advised of

          9  what their rights are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Where is that?

         11                 MR. VALLES: On the back of their tow

         12  slips.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, in other words,

         14  the tow truck driver who is in the arterial program

         15  is required to give the driver of the disabled car a

         16  tow slip?

         17                 MR. VALLES: That's correct. The tow

         18  slip articulates the fees for the removal of the

         19  vehicle and also, you know, a total charge.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: A total charge?

         21                 MR. VALLES: Yes, a total charge.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But that's after

         23  they have taken it off the highway.

         24                 MR. VALLES: Right.

         25                 But the tow operator is required to
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          2  tell the motorist what his rights are in removing

          3  that vehicle.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Prior to taking the

          5  car?

          6                 MR. VALLES: Prior to tow, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Does the driver

          8  have an option, like this particular tow truck

          9  company?

         10                 MR. VALLES: There is no option.

         11  They're exclusive on the highway, and if there's a

         12  refusal, then our police officers dispatch to the

         13  scene, and he will advise the motorist that that

         14  particular company is authorized, is solely

         15  authorized to remove the vehicle.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How often does that

         17  happen?

         18                 MR. VALLES: I don't have numbers for

         19  you, but this is like daily.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is daily, sir?

         21                 MR. VALLES: That the disabled

         22  vehicles or accidents, to removal of vehicles.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sure that is, I

         24  think what I'm asking you is, how often do you have

         25  complaints where a driver may refuse to have this
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          2  tow truck driver or there's a misunderstanding where

          3  it's required for a police officer to come and

          4  explain to the driver the program and the

          5  requirement to have this particular truck, tow

          6  truck, remove their car from the arterial?

          7                 MR. VALLES: I don't have numbers for

          8  you. I know there's very few occasions that that

          9  does happen.

         10                 When I'm in my vehicle I hear on the

         11  radio, occasionally we hear a refusal for tow and a

         12  highway district unit is dispatched to it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have a copy

         14  of that tow slip that we could see?

         15                 MR. VALLES: No, we don't. But we

         16  certainly would get it to you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I would appreciate

         18  it. I would think perhaps that would have been

         19  something we would have brought along, since that's

         20  the conversation that we're having today.

         21                 MR. VALLES: We have a copy of it, but

         22  it's only the front with the charges on it. The bill

         23  of rights is not with it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         25                 I know that I can't leave this dais
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          2  without telling you that you've got elected

          3  officials here who represent most likely the

          4  consumers.

          5                 We do represent the tow truck

          6  drivers, but I'm sure we'd like to see what the Bill

          7  of Rights is for our consumers.

          8                 So, I think that would be important

          9  to get that to us.

         10                 MR. VALLES: We certainly will do

         11  that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Perhaps you could

         13  send somebody or have it brought over here, because

         14  this hearing is going to go on for a little bit. So,

         15  I would like to see that before we move too much

         16  further along.

         17                 If you talk about a bill of rights to

         18  elected officials, that's sort of a flag that goes

         19  right up in the air.

         20                 MR. VALLES: Okay, we'll send for it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         22  Barron, you had some questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. Chair. The Directed Accident Response

         25  program fundamentally for removing vehicles once
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          2  they're in accidents and they can't be operated, and

          3  the Rotow program is for those vehicles that are

          4  abandoned or stollen and they go to remove them.

          5                 How much competition do you see at

          6  the scene of an accident for towing companies? Those

          7  who are listed with Rotow or DARP and others that

          8  may not be, how do you monitor that?

          9                 MS. PRATI: With DARP the companies

         10  are notified by the Communication section to

         11  respond.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: What happens

         13  when they get to a scene and there's another?

         14                 MS. PRATI: If a police officer gets

         15  to a scene of an accident and they're notified over

         16  the radio which tow company should respond, if they

         17  see another tow company on the scene, they can issue

         18  them a violation for responding, for an unsolicited

         19  response.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And how does

         21  that happen with the Rotow, it's a little different?

         22                 MS. PRATI: Yes. The Rotow is -- what

         23  happens is that the police officer comes upon a

         24  recovered stolen vehicle or an abandoned vehicle,

         25  they call the command, and the command notifies the
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          2  next Rotow company over the phone. So, it's not

          3  something that's put out over the air.

          4                 The tow company responds to the scene

          5  and removes the vehicle.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you see an

          7  increase or a decrease in the competition at the

          8  scene of an accident?

          9                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Lieutenant

         10  Franklin, sir.

         11                 Basically we have not seen an

         12  increase in the --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Would you identify

         14  yourself, please.

         15                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: I'm Lieutenant

         16  Franklin of the Chief Patrol's Office, Resource

         17  Management Section.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just a minute.

         19                 In terms of this, you have some line

         20  of supervision for the other two people that were

         21  here, Ms. Prati and --

         22                 MS. PRATI: Lieutenant Franklin works

         23  in my office and he's the liaison --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: He works in your

         25  office?
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          2                 MS. PRATI: Yes. Yes, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're his

          4  supervisor.

          5                 MS. PRATI: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, I'm just

          7  trying to keep it all straight.

          8                 MS. PRATI: He's our liaison with

          9  Consumer Affairs and with the towing industry.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

         11  Sorry.

         12                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Okay, sir.

         13  Basically what happens, we have not seen an increase

         14  in unsolicited response at tow scenes by tow trucks.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay.

         16                 Let me ask the Department of Consumer

         17  Affairs, how long does an inspection take?

         18                 MS. MULLINGS: It takes generally 20

         19  minutes to a half an hour.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Twenty minutes

         21  to a half an hour?

         22                 MS. MULLINGS: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And when staff

         24  is accompanied with ten trucks, they have to bring

         25  all ten trucks in?
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          2                 MS. MULLINGS: We've been generally

          3  doing nine or more. We've been trying to go to the

          4  location, and there were times at the end of

          5  December and the beginning of January where we were

          6  in an area, there were some tow companies that put

          7  together groups for us, so we would do a group via

          8  different companies.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So that means

         10  for that period of time that towing company, of

         11  course couldn't do business, they would have to be,

         12  they would have to have all their trucks at the site

         13  and they couldn't take care of any business at the

         14  time until the inspection.

         15                 MS. MULLINGS: Well, they couldn't

         16  operate because they weren't inspected.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So they

         18  couldn't operate anyway because they were

         19  uninspected, and is there sometimes a conflict with

         20  them, let's say you have a lot of trucks -- say if

         21  you have the number of trucks, I'm trying to get at

         22  is the inspection process, does that hamper

         23  business, or is it a process or anything that they

         24  have to go through to be inspected, stop them from

         25  taking care of business in a reasonable time?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: If they

          3  had filed their paperwork on time, they would have

          4  been inspected timely and they could have staggered

          5  when their trucks came in and there would have been

          6  no disruption to their business, and I think what

          7  the director said was that if they came in at the

          8  end of December and they weren't licensed, they

          9  couldn't operate anyhow, so they had to be inspected

         10  in order to be licensed and to be on the streets

         11  legally.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you have

         13  any complaints from the towing companies on the

         14  process of it?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We did

         16  hear some complaints, yes, sir.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just want to

         18  know the nature of some of those complaints.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

         20  some people complained that they had to have their

         21  trucks inspected at all.

         22                 Some people complained that we didn't

         23  give them a three-month grace period to operate

         24  without a valid license.

         25                 Some people complained that they
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          2  filed all of their paperwork with an industry group

          3  and it hadn't been processed and we should be

          4  accountable for that, which is something we clearly

          5  can't be accountable for. But I think for the most

          6  part, people understood that, they waited til the

          7  last minute and then they wanted things to be moved

          8  as quickly as possible and they were -- they

          9  understood that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, it's your

         11  understanding then, nothing happened within your

         12  process that was really legitimized, any complaints

         13  that the towing industry industry has?

         14                 MS. MULLINGS: What I'm saying is

         15  since enforcement took it over, at the first time in

         16  the beginning there were, you know, there were some

         17  problems, there were some communication problem

         18  between enforcement and licensing, people didn't

         19  quite understand that we were making them comply

         20  with the law and therefore the signage had to be the

         21  appropriate signage.

         22                 There were a lot of complaints of

         23  people who were calling on December 28th and 29th,

         24  that they applied their application on December 25th

         25  and couldn't understand why we didn't have the
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          2  manpower to inspect their truck for January 1st.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And what would

          4  happen with those kind of complaints? How would you

          5  deal with it?

          6                 MS. MULLINGS: In fact, I did a lot of

          7  the scheduling toward the end of December. I

          8  explained to them that we had notified them in

          9  October, and that we guaranteed them if they had

         10  submitted their paperwork by December 1st, their

         11  trucks would be inspected in time, and that they

         12  hadn't done that and that there was only so many

         13  manpower I had to do inspections.

         14                 In fact, we had taken our other units

         15  of enforcement away from other things they could

         16  have been doing to do the borough inspections, and

         17  we also increased the amount of people doing the tow

         18  inspections from a unit of two people to five people

         19  during this entire period.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And this new

         21  proposal to extend the inspections to further

         22  months, in June or whatever, that you feel would

         23  resolve some of the issues?

         24                 MS. MULLINGS: Well, I think it's much

         25  easier standing outside inspecting trucks in warm
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          2  weather than this December which was incredibly

          3  cold.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes. Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. I have a

          7  couple of questions. I think we're going back and

          8  forth over the overall issue of towing and Council

          9  Member Barron's questions were certainly relevant,

         10  as well as is specific to some of the legislation.

         11  But before I call on Council Member Reyna and

         12  Addabbo, in that order, I guess I did not get what I

         13  thought was a clear answer as to, are you satisfied

         14  with the management and the operation of the

         15  arterial program.

         16                 Is your estimation, is it working

         17  well?

         18                 I guess I'm asking that of -- okay,

         19  that's who I'm asking it of.

         20                 MR. VALLES: It's John Valles again.

         21                 Yes, the arterial tow is working

         22  fine. We have really no issues with the arterial

         23  tow. It's not only being managed well, but

         24  supervised as well by the highway district.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And so you could
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          2  infer then that the tow drivers are doing a good

          3  job?

          4                 MR. VALLES: They're pretty much in

          5  compliance, yes, sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Reyna.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Good morning.

          9  And thank you, Chair, for indulging me.

         10                 Although I'm not a member, I

         11  co-sponsored with the Chair of the Committee, this

         12  bill, and I'm just trying to understand and get up

         13  clarification. You have the DARP, the Rotow, and

         14  arterial tow. Out of all the three, arterial tow is

         15  the only program you have where you have to solicit

         16  RFPs so-to-speak, like a request for proposal, where

         17  you have a selection of different applicants, then

         18  one is chosen to a geographic area, as opposed to

         19  DARP and Rotow where you have significant amount of

         20  applications through the Department of Consumer

         21  Affairs, where if they meet all the requirements, as

         22  indicated, then they will be licensed to tow on

         23  regular City-wide areas; is that correct?

         24                 MR. VALLES: Not quite. There is no

         25  RFP. It's what we call a PRA, which is a Permit
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          2  Application Request, that procedure is that when the

          3  permit expire, or is just about to expire, we have a

          4  committee that is formed, and we get the list of

          5  licensed tow operators from the Department of

          6  Consumer Affairs, and we notify all towers citywide

          7  that are doing the selection process, those that put

          8  in their applications, there's requirements on the

          9  application to -- such as facility storage, number

         10  of trucks, that's like a phase one to make sure they

         11  meet those requirements, or if they don't make those

         12  requirements.

         13                 Then there's a review of those

         14  applications, and either pass or fail, then of

         15  course, each of the companies will demonstrate if

         16  they have, if let's say they commit to more than

         17  what's minimally required, let's say number of tow

         18  trucks, in other words, if I tell them I need no

         19  more than four tow trucks on arterial, one flatbed

         20  and heavy duty, and they put down that they're

         21  willing to put eight tow trucks, two flatbeds and

         22  two heavy duties, they get a score higher than the

         23  others.

         24                 Then, of course, it goes through the

         25  whole process of through the Committee to review
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          2  these applications. In the application there's also

          3  a process where we check for any complaints, such as

          4  complaints at the Department of Consumer Affairs,

          5  Department of Motor Vehicle, and we also check for

          6  criminal background.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 I just wanted to make sure that there

         10  was some sort of procedure where if you are a DARP

         11  or a Rotow, you can certainly compete to receive a

         12  permit application request, and be a participant in

         13  the arterial tow program.

         14                 MR. VALLES: Whenever we go through

         15  that process, every licensed tow operator is

         16  notified.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And I wanted to

         18  just find out, how many members in the Committee?

         19                 MR. VALLES: There's five. One

         20  chairman and four members.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And who

         22  appoints them?

         23                 MR. VALLES: The Police Commissioner.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: The Police

         25  Commissioner? All five?
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          2                 MR. VALLES: All five, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And when it

          4  comes to the rates, I have a column here for each

          5  program. Who sets the rate? Is this a combination of

          6  NYPD, along with Consumer Affairs? Or is it all

          7  Consumer Affairs or only NYPD, or it depends on the

          8  program?

          9                 MR. VALLES: It's actually set by law.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Set by law?

         11                 MR. VALLES: By law.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, the City

         13  Council set the rate.

         14                 MR. VALLES: I have legal counsel that

         15  will answer that question for you.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Good

         17  morning. I'm Susan Petito. I'm the Assistant

         18  Commissioner for Intergovernmental Affairs for the

         19  Police Department.

         20                 And that's actually a complicated

         21  question. We're not quite sure, whether the rate,

         22  especially the pick-up rate, is set by the Council

         23  or by rule, because there's a reference in

         24  regulations too. Another regulation, a regulation of

         25  the DOT refers to a regulation of the DCA, and then
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          2  that does refer to a section of the law which is not

          3  specifically about Arterial Tow, but all towing. So,

          4  that's one of the reasons that we put in our

          5  testimony that we need to clarify what the intent of

          6  the bill is, because we're not sure whether the rate

          7  needs to be set by the Council in legislation, or it

          8  can be set by rule.

          9                 So, we're going to work with the Law

         10  Department to come to an answer on that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Or can be set what?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: By

         13  rule, by regulation. So we need to clarify that with

         14  the Law Department, because our reading of the bill

         15  was that it seems that the Council wants to set a

         16  ceiling; in other words, that a rate to be set by

         17  rule would not exceed $70, if I'm reading it

         18  correctly, but we weren't sure, if that was the

         19  Council's intent as opposed to setting the fee at

         20  70.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, Council

         22  Member Reyna.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Of course.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But let me make a

         25  clarification here.
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          2                 We took the language as it is right

          3  now, which says for passenger vehicles, $50 maximum

          4  is a fee for the first mile of towing. That's in the

          5  arterial tow. We have made a recommendation to raise

          6  that to $70 for the first mile. We have not, at

          7  least in the first draft, made the proposal to make

          8  that a flat fee, we simply took the language of the

          9  existing regulation, and increased that dollar

         10  figure to 70.

         11                 Now, there may be a reason for us to

         12  look at it as a flat fee, but as it's presented

         13  today, that's what we've done. So, is it clear now?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         15  I guess that language is based on the regulation now

         16  that exists, that the fee is $50. So I guess that's

         17  clear that you would like to set that as a ceiling

         18  so that the rate established by regulation will not

         19  exceed $70; is my understanding correct? As opposed

         20  to setting the fee at $70.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We are going to

         22  take testimony from the Administration, as well as

         23  the industry.

         24                 If it seems in the wisdom of this

         25  Council that we should change it, to make it a flat
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          2  rate, we'll do that. In terms of to make it simple,

          3  we just increase the dollar volume based on the

          4  language that was here for us to work with.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: There was a lot of

          7  concern, because it had been presented, a lot of

          8  this discussion has gone on and many people have

          9  presented it as an issue of parity, but as you look

         10  at the three programs, and I would urge my

         11  colleagues to try to take a look at this sheet of

         12  comparison of towing programs, and tow rates,

         13  particularly of the tow rates, there's really no

         14  such thing as parity. You've got two programs that

         15  set a flat fee, but they're not the same flat fee.

         16                 You have a third program that

         17  certainly doesn't have the same sort of base fee,

         18  but there's a charge for per mile towing, which

         19  there isn't in the other one. It's sort of hard to

         20  determine what would be parity.

         21                 So, for the purpose of this initial

         22  discussion, we've just simply put forward that the

         23  rate, the maximum rate shall be 70. We're taking

         24  testimony today, if you'd like to make a

         25  recommendation about which way you think would be
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          2  better, we'd be happy to hear it.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          4  think we probably would have to study that, because,

          5  yes, it seems that the DARP rate is 80, so there may

          6  be, you know, we would need to look at the

          7  differences between the programs and the needs of

          8  the industry, and the relative benefits and cost to

          9  the consumers.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         12                 I'm sorry, Council Member Reyna.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That's why

         14  you're the chair, you took the juice right out of my

         15  question.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I took the juice

         17  out of your question?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes. That's

         19  better than taking the question out of the juice,

         20  though, right?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Did you get

         22  clarification on this Advisory Board? Because I'm

         23  confused.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I believe we're

         25  going to continue. We accept the clarification. I
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          2  believe we understand why the City Council has

          3  proposed this type of legislation. I'm assuming that

          4  the next step would be referring to what parity will

          5  be as a follow up for future reference.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

          9  Addabbo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair. A tough act to follow here.

         12                 I thank the panel for their time and

         13  testimony today. I believe my questions, initially

         14  my question is for the Police Department.

         15                 Is there adequate staffing for the

         16  DARP program, 24 hour dispatchers, is there adequate

         17  staffing at that point?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry, when you

         19  testify you really do have to identify yourself so

         20  we can properly have it notated who is speaking.

         21                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: I'm Lieutenant

         22  Franklin, from the Chief of Patrol's Resource

         23  Management section.

         24                 For the DARP program, currently NYPD

         25  has a full-time DARP staff with DARP operators who
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          2  get calls. Basically when you have an accident out

          3  in the field, police officer responds to the scene

          4  and determines whether or not the vehicle could

          5  safely be driven.

          6                 Once he makes that determination that

          7  the vehicle cannot safely be driven, he notifies the

          8  radio dispatcher. The radio dispatcher then

          9  transfers, he notifies the radio dispatcher that the

         10  vehicle requires the DARP tow with the minimum

         11  description of the vehicle.

         12                 Again, from there, the dispatcher

         13  then forwards that information over to the DARP

         14  room. The DARP operator sitting at a computer

         15  terminal brings up the next available company and

         16  that is generated automatically by the system.

         17                 They then contact that company and

         18  inform them that there is a DARP job for them and

         19  the location of the job.

         20                 Then the company has 30 minutes to

         21  respond to the scene. If they don't respond within

         22  30 minutes, the Police Officer does the whole thing

         23  over again and the next company is called.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So you have a

         25  dispatcher and a DARP operator?
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          2                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Yes. The

          3  dispatcher dispatches normal police jobs. The DARP

          4  operator is only dispatching DARP calls to the

          5  companies.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And you have

          7  a sufficient staffing level for both 2407 --

          8                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Seven days a

         10  week?

         11                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: For both?

         13                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: For both.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay.

         15                 When a tow truck company refuses a

         16  call, what do you consider a refusal, other than,

         17  you know, no, I cannot make it?

         18                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Okay. By law the

         19  companies are required to be available 24 hours a

         20  day, seven days a week. When a company refuses a

         21  call, the system notates that the company has

         22  refused or they did not answer or they were unable

         23  or an answering machine picked up. What happens is

         24  that companies are only allowed three refusals

         25  within a six-month period, and by law they could
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          2  face suspension from the program.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So even a no

          4  answer to the company is a refusal. So, I guess in a

          5  given situation where all cars are out for that one

          6  company, if they get another call, that's considered

          7  a refusal if there is no answer?

          8                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: That is correct,

          9  sir. But that is what the companies agreed to when

         10  they joined the program. That is in legislation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Another

         12  company responds to the incident or the accident

         13  because the initial tow truck company couldn't

         14  respond, okay? Another company who was not called

         15  initially responds.

         16                 Is that reported on the accident

         17  report?

         18                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: No, sir.

         19                 If another company -- for instance,

         20  if I call ABC Towing to an accident scene, and ABC

         21  towing doesn't show up, but XYZ Towing does, XYZ

         22  Towing should be given an LD6 unsolicited response

         23  at that time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay.

         25                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Only the company
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          2  that is called to the scene can respond and can pick

          3  up the vehicle.

          4                 The primary reason for that is, if

          5  you're at an accident scene, the consumer at this

          6  point does not have the opportunity to call his own

          7  tow company, so the companies that have joined the

          8  DARP company have been approved by Consumer Affairs.

          9  When you've got XYZ Towing, we don't know where that

         10  vehicle is going. We have no idea. So we want only

         11  the companies that are called that are approved

         12  taking your call.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Even if an

         14  approved company responds but it wasn't the first

         15  one called, they get penalized for that at all?

         16                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Any company that

         17  responds that is not called should be issued an LD6

         18  fine solicited response.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Again, I just

         20  --

         21                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Okay. If the

         22  first company doesn't show up in 30 minutes and the

         23  police officer calls and a second company comes,

         24  that second company is allowed to remove the

         25  vehicle.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: They are

          3  allowed.

          4                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Yes, if they are

          5  called.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Not penalized

          7  in any way?

          8                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: If they are

          9  called.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: If even the

         11  second company called?

         12                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Yes. What

         13  happens is the first company does not respond. A

         14  second company is called, the second company then

         15  removes the vehicle.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay. Again,

         17  lastly, you were referring back to the staffing

         18  level, there is no situation where companies have to

         19  rely on a system other than the dispatcher? They

         20  don't have to rely on anything else? A radio, on

         21  their own, nothing like that?

         22                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: No, sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, thank

         24  you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Lastly, before we
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          2  hear from the industry, Assistant Commissioner

          3  Toole, do you have a recommendation to make in terms

          4  of the increase in this fee for the arterial tows

          5  that's being put forward in our resolution, in our

          6  bill?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: The

          8  Department does not have a recommendation at this

          9  time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Would either the

         11  Police Department or the Department of Consumer

         12  Affairs want to weigh in on -- I would assume since

         13  we've discussed this that you all feel that it is a

         14  timely question that we be looking at what the

         15  arterial tows are allowed to charge, whether it's a

         16  flat fee, or a ceiling on that, would you agree that

         17  this is an appropriate question for us to be

         18  reviewing? It's my understanding that that rate for

         19  arterials has not been adjusted since 1995.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We at

         21  Consumer Affairs certainly believe that this is an

         22  appropriate question to look at.

         23                 We would defer, however, to the

         24  Police Department on any recommendation, because

         25  they're the agency that actually administers the
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          2  arterial program, and they know it in-depth.

          3                 MS. PRATI: And the Police Department

          4  certainly agrees that it's a timely question and we

          5  will look at it as well, and we understand that you

          6  are looking at it as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, well, I

          8  appreciate it very much and I understand that you

          9  just brought up the arterial tow customer bill of

         10  rights. I certainly want to share this with my

         11  colleagues. I'm a little bit disappointed that

         12  knowing that we are -- one of the bills that we are

         13  discussing today was the increase in this, that you

         14  don't have a recommendation or a suggestion to make.

         15  That's a little bit disappointing. But we will be

         16  having another hearing, and I would ask you today to

         17  come in and even potentially prior to this to speak

         18  to Deborah Brown, our Counsel to the Committee, let

         19  us know how you feel about this. I don't want to

         20  have another hearing and -- I'm trying not to say,

         21  but, you know, we want to try to move this forward,

         22  okay? I appreciate it.

         23                 Are there any other questions for the

         24  Administration? Thank you all very much.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Next we want to

          4  hear from the industry, as they say. And I want to

          5  call on Christopher Lynn. I wish Christopher Lynn's

          6  handwriting were a little bit better, but I want to

          7  call on Christopher Lynn. And is there anybody, Mr.

          8  Lynn, who you think should be testifying there with

          9  you?

         10                 MR. LYNN: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The

         11  entire Arterial Tow of the City of New York.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see. Well, just

         13  don't pull the dais out of the room.

         14                 Why don't you have them sit up in the

         15  front and you can have a few of them at the table

         16  and introduce them, rather than my trying to figure

         17  out, I know this Joseph Robles is here and he has

         18  called us, and I hope you guys fill out the forms

         19  for these people, you know, the charges, better than

         20  you fill out these forms, because I can't read any

         21  of it. But then, again, I've got an eye infection. I

         22  know, doesn't it look terrible? You see me sitting

         23  here with this thing over my eye, Council Member

         24  Reyna didn't beat me up.

         25                 I would hope that somebody from the
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          2  Administration is remaining to hear testimony?

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. LYNN: Mr. Chairman, good morning.

          5  With your permission?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please.

          7                 MR. LYNN: My name is Christopher

          8  Lynn. As you know, I'm the former Transportation

          9  Commissioner of the City of New York. I'm an

         10  attorney. It's my honor and privilege to be here

         11  today with the entire Arterial Tow Program for the

         12  City of New York, the six licensed operators.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, Mr. Lynn,

         14  that begs the question now. If someone broke down on

         15  an arterial right now --

         16                 MR. LYNN: Well, they have a staff,

         17  Chairman, as you'll hear.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I wanted to clear

         19  that up. Okay.

         20                 MR. LYNN: They have --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I don't want to be

         22  responsible for tying up the roadway out there. It's

         23  slippery.

         24                 MR. LYNN: Absolutely.

         25                 We are here to testify in favor of
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          2  Resolution 143. As the Chairman has said very

          3  succinctly, 2001 this Council recognized that for

          4  two other programs within the City, DARP and Rotow,

          5  increased costs had required an increase. This

          6  industry was left out because basically they didn't

          7  have anyone to make their case, so-to-speak, and as

          8  you succinctly put, I found it very interesting,

          9  that neither one of the Police Department or the

         10  Department of Consumer Affairs wanted to bite the

         11  bullet in regard to recommending an increase. But as

         12  you have pointed out, there's been no increase since

         13  1995, and Mr. Joseph K. Robles from Knights Towing

         14  will give testimony. Everyone else here is available

         15  to answer questions, and he'll talk specifically

         16  about cost, from 2001 on.

         17                 Interestingly, if I might, Mr.

         18  Chairman, very briefly. I wondered what the reaction

         19  of Council Member Koppell was as former Attorney

         20  General in the State to that slight of hand

         21  presentation by counsel on the issue from Police

         22  Department as to who has the ultimate authority in

         23  regard to setting rates, and of course if the City

         24  Charter gives a City agency the right to do it, they

         25  have the right, but in this instance, the Council is
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          2  the authority, in terms of, you know, who pays what.

          3                 So, without further ado, I'd like to

          4  introduce Mr. Robles. As I said, other members are

          5  here to answer questions, and he will make the

          6  presentation. I thank this Council very much. It's

          7  good to see a lot of you. As you remember, I worked

          8  for Councilman Diaz for a year, and I haven't seen

          9  you for awhile. Some of you look great. Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just some of us

         12  look great.

         13                 MR. LYNN: I was looking at Councilman

         14  Reyna.

         15                 MR. ROBLES: Good morning, Chairperson

         16  Reed and the other members of the Committee.

         17                 Under Title 11 of the Rules of the

         18  City of New York, Chapter 4 --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry. Mr.

         20  Robles.

         21                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You need to

         23  identify yourself for the record.

         24                 MR. ROBLES: Okay, I apologize.

         25                 My name is Joseph K. Robles, I'm
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          2  President of Knights Collision Experts, Inc.,

          3  arterial tow operator on Segment 1. I'm speaking

          4  this morning on behalf of all the arterial tow

          5  companies that operate on the 16 segments of

          6  arterial roadways throughout the City.

          7                 Under Title 11 of the Rules of the

          8  City of New York, Chapter 4, entitled Traffic Rules

          9  and Regulations, entitled Road Service and Towing

         10  Rates, defines the current rates that arterial

         11  highway towing permittees are allowed by law to

         12  charge.

         13                 Arterial towing presents challenges

         14  to any towing company, such as procedural

         15  regulations, adequate staffing, dealing with irate

         16  and/or distressed motorists, keeping expenses

         17  equipment on standby for emergency use, and

         18  disposing of unclaimed vehicles.

         19                 Each arterial highway permittee

         20  provides quality service to the motoring public and

         21  the NYPD. The service must include timely responses,

         22  professional dispatchers and staff.

         23                 I'm going to advance on to the cost

         24  increase that we've undergone since the last rate

         25  increase.
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          2                 (A) Tow truck costs have increased

          3  approximately 50 percent. In 1994 a light duty

          4  wrecker cost around $43,000. Today --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry,

          6  light-duty?

          7                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Light duty what?

          9                 MR. ROBLES: A tow truck that would be

         10  used to tow a car.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The cost of the

         12  truck itself?

         13                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         15                 MR. ROBLES: Yes. Fifty percent from

         16  ten years ago, around $43,000, the same truck today

         17  would cost $63,000.

         18                 Insurance has increased 400 percent.

         19  In 1994, insuring a light-duty wrecker would cost my

         20  company approximately $270 per month. Today

         21  insurance for the same truck costs my company over

         22  $1,100 per truck per month. Staff has received

         23  raises.  Since 1994 salaries have gone up in all

         24  positions throughout the company, from 30 to 50

         25  percent.
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          2                 Communication costs have

          3  sky-rocketed. In 1994 we only used truck mounted

          4  two-way radios. Today we use two-way Nextel cellular

          5  phones and GPS systems. All allow us to perform a

          6  better service but at cost to our operations.

          7                 Mechanics' lien costs have doubled.

          8  In 1994 it cost $75 to perform a mechanics' lien.

          9  Today it costs at least $150.

         10                 Fuel costs have doubled. In 1994,

         11  diesel fuel costs approximately 99 cents per gallon.

         12  Today it costs us approximately $1.99 per gallon.

         13                 Real estate costs have more than

         14  tripled. In 1994, an outdoor 5,000 square foot

         15  storage lot cost about $1,000 per month to rent.

         16  Today a 5,000 square foot storage lot will cost at

         17  least $3,000 a month to rent.

         18                 In 1995, the New York State DMV

         19  raised insurance requirements and added requirements

         20  for drivers to operate tow trucks, all of which

         21  increased our cost of doing business.

         22                 Operators of DARP and Rotow receive

         23  their calls over the phone once the need for a tow

         24  truck has been established by a police officer.

         25                 Arterial tow operators are required
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          2  to patrol their assigned segments 24 hours a day,

          3  seven days a week. Arterial tow operators actually

          4  assist the NYPD by clearing disabled vehicles

          5  without any involvement by the NYPD.

          6                 By the unique way the arterial tow

          7  program operates, its operators have considerable

          8  more expenses than the participants of the other

          9  regulator programs, such as liability exposure,

         10  wear, tear, fuel, tires, et cetera.

         11                 The DARP and Rotow fees do not

         12  include mileage when towed back to the storage

         13  facility. This type of fee structure does not work

         14  for the arterial towers. In DARP and Rotow, the

         15  vehicle will be towed to a storage facility within

         16  the confines of the precinct, or adjacent precinct

         17  that the vehicle was towed from.

         18                 In the case of Knights, we operate on

         19  only one of the 16 arterial segments in the City. In

         20  operating one segment we tow from the confines of 14

         21  different precincts and as far as 16 miles away.

         22                 Other arterial tow operators operate

         23  as many as five arterial segments. The prior bill,

         24  Intro. 628, allowed an increase from $50 to $80 for

         25  the hook-up in first mile. That raise was still
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          2  below the amount really needed, but would be

          3  acceptable as an immediate remedy until an organized

          4  effort could be made for an amount higher than the

          5  DARP rate of $80.

          6                 The current bill Intro. 143 lowers

          7  the increase $10 to $70. We are asking in light of

          8  this testimony, and facts being submitted today,

          9  that the bill be amended to reflect the rate allowed

         10  in Intro. 628 of $80.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 You have presented very compelling

         14  information in terms of rates that you are now

         15  having to pay for insurance storage, land et cetera,

         16  and I appreciate at our suggestion you have put that

         17  together. It makes it clearer for us.

         18                 But your company is called Knights

         19  Collision Experts?

         20                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It's not a

         22  different Knights Towing, it's the name of the

         23  company?

         24                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, Knights Collision

         25  Experts.

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, do you also

          3  operate in the DARP or the Rotow Program?

          4                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, I do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, you got an

          6  increase for those two programs?

          7                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, we did.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What percentage of

          9  your tow business is the arterial?

         10                 MR. ROBLES: Probably around 80

         11  percent.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Eighty percent?

         13                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I know you would

         15  have to be speculating on this, but is that the

         16  average for most people? Is the arterial the biggest

         17  part of this business?

         18                 MR. ROBLES: Well, the arterial

         19  operators are specialized in arterial towing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That means they're

         21  more an arterial towing business than there is Rotow

         22  and DARP?

         23                 MR. ROBLES: Yes. We get more calls

         24  with the arterial tow than with Rotow or DARP.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, your head is
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          2  going like this.

          3                 MR. ROBLES: Just by the design of the

          4  program we're exclusive, so we'll get every call as

          5  opposed to DARP and Rotow.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

          7                 MR. ROBLES: Or we'll be on a rotating

          8  list with other companies.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So what other

         10  services do you perform at your Collision Experts

         11  business?

         12                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, we do collision

         13  repair and auto repair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, these

         15  additional costs are spread out across all of the

         16  programs that you have there?

         17                 MR. ROBLES: Yes. But when I analyze

         18  my cost of doing business and the source being the

         19  arterial tow, it's not enough to compensate for the

         20  expenses involved. Primarily the patroling of the

         21  arterial roadway on a 24 hour, seven day a week

         22  basis --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: In other words,

         24  it's costing you money to just drive up and down the

         25  arterial --
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          2                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, it is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- To see if

          4  someone's car is broken down or if they're in

          5  distress and need a tow?

          6                 MR. ROBLES: As opposed to the other

          7  program.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Whether or not you

          9  get paid.

         10                 MR. ROBLES: Correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Whether you pick

         12  somebody up, you've got a cost of a driver dedicated

         13  to that job?

         14                 MR. ROBLES: Several drivers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: In your particular

         16  case how many drivers is that?

         17                 MR. ROBLES: Normally three drivers

         18  per segment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are they paid by

         20  the hour?

         21                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, they are.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How much are they

         23  paid by the hour?

         24                 MR. ROBLES: That depends on their

         25  experience, their type of license, how long they've
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          2  been, anywhere from ten to 15 dollars an hour.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And this is not a

          4  unionized thing, is it?

          5                 MR. ROBLES: No, it's not.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So that's an

          7  arbitrary rate that you determine?

          8                 MR. ROBLES: It's determined by the

          9  market.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So it's an industry

         11  thing?

         12                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And on average, on

         14  a day, how many miles are put on the truck?

         15                 MR. ROBLES: A couple of hundred miles

         16  a day.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: A couple of hundred

         18  miles a day on your truck?

         19                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Whether you pick

         21  anybody up or not?

         22                 MR. ROBLES: Whether you pick anybody

         23  up or not.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Why do you think

         25  that DARP and the Rotow are not allowed to charge a
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          2  mileage fee, but the arterials do?

          3                 MR. ROBLES: The DARP and Rotow

          4  programs will request a tow from within the confines

          5  of the precinct of that towing company --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry, I was a

          7  little distracted.

          8                 Start the answer again, please.

          9                 MR. ROBLES: On a DARP or Rotow

         10  request for a tow, it will be for the confines of

         11  the precinct of which that storage facility is in or

         12  the adjacent precinct.

         13                 Like I explained in my testimony, I

         14  only operate one segment, and I will tow in the

         15  arterial tow program from the confines of 14

         16  different precincts. So, if we're basically in

         17  Williamsburg, Brooklyn, I'll tow as far up as the

         18  George Washington Bridge on the Harlem River Drive.

         19  Which would exceed 16 miles.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is your

         21  requirement? Your requirement is to get the car off

         22  of the arterial highway?

         23                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, if I were the

         25  driver of a car that was disabled, and one of your
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          2  trucks picked me up, I could ask you to simply get

          3  this car off of the highway and leave it, put it

          4  down on some City street if I wanted to?

          5                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, that's very common.

          6  We refer to it as an exit tow.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: An exit tow?

          8                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And in this

         10  passenger bill of rights -- passenger vehicles, bill

         11  of rights for passenger vehicles, do you give people

         12  an estimate of how many miles?

         13                 A lot of the criticism that's come

         14  up, and I think potentially one of the reasons that

         15  the Chair looked at the increase, is that you've got

         16  a $4 charge per mile.

         17                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's a lot of

         19  money, $4 a mile, and you're saying to me sometimes

         20  you go 16 miles.

         21                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's a lot of

         23  money.

         24                 Has that gone up? Oh, I see I started

         25  something over there now.
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          2                 MR. ROBLES: George from Ridge

          3  Transport would like to answer that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: George, you need to

          5  identify yourself, please.

          6                 MR. SHIFO: My name is George from

          7  Ridge Transport.

          8                 In the law, the mileage charge is

          9  currently $4 --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: George?

         11                 MR. SHIFO:: Yes, sir?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You need to tell me

         13  your whole name for the record.

         14                 MR. SHIFO: George Shifo (phonetic),

         15  Ridge Transport System.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         17                 MR. SHIFO: The law of the mileage is

         18  written as $4 and PD Legal brought up a question

         19  whether they have a cap that they allow to charge,

         20  but we're still only allowed to charge $3.50 a mile.

         21  The increase the City Council set last time has

         22  never been recognized, including our storage, which

         23  was also increased within the law, and it's never

         24  been recognized.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, my counsel
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          2  seems to understand what you just said, I didn't.

          3  You said $3.50 for what?

          4                 MR. SHIFO: We are only allowed to

          5  charge right now $3.50 a mile, although the law

          6  which was changed, I believe January, '01 --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, in other words,

          8  you're saying you could charge a maximum of $4 a

          9  mile, but the DCA has not allowed you to charge

         10  that.

         11                 MR. SHIFO: PD Legal, that's what the

         12  question was asking, specifically --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What?

         14                 MR. SHIFO: PD Legal, the woman from

         15  PD legal, specifically asked --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Police Department,

         17  Legal, okay. Right, okay.

         18                 MR. SHIFO: Right. She specifically

         19  asked a question in reference to if there was a cap.

         20  Because our industry, the arterial towers, have

         21  consistently brought up this point, that in our PAR

         22  request originally, there was a certain law that we

         23  were followed by, and by the time we were all

         24  awarded the segment, that law had changed, yet

         25  nobody recognized it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Now, when you say

          3  awarded the segments, in other words, that's the

          4  portion of certain highways that you all are

          5  supposed to patrol, right?

          6                 MR. SHIFO: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And Mr. Robles, you

          8  said you had 16 segments; is that what you said?

          9                 MR. ROBLES: No, in the City of New

         10  York there is a total of 16 segments that six

         11  operators operate.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Oh, maybe I

         13  got that mixed up with the 14 precincts, there was a

         14  lot of numbers.

         15                 MR. ROBLES: What I was trying to

         16  express to you is, my company only has one permit

         17  for one segment and we tow through 14 different

         18  precincts on that segment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How long is the

         20  segment?

         21                 MR. ROBLES: My segment from N to N is

         22  approximately 14 miles.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And on what

         24  particular highway is this?

         25                 MR. ROBLES: The FDR Drive and the
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          2  Harlem River Drive.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: From where to

          4  where?

          5                 MR. ROBLES: From, I believe it's

          6  Dygrin Street, down to and through the Battery Park

          7  on the pass.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see, okay. Okay,

          9  I'm sorry. So, continue.

         10                 MR. ROBLES: The point I was trying to

         11  make, and I believe that PD Legal is trying to ask

         12  the Committee was whether the law is a cap or we're

         13  supposed to charge the rates by the law. Because

         14  what they have been doing to us is interesting. Now

         15  we've sent several requests in writing, by fax,

         16  verbal, to recognize the new law, the increase that

         17  was set in 2001, and they have not. They have not

         18  officially refused it or there is no decision they

         19  make.

         20                 That would be something we would

         21  request from the Committee to be specific with the

         22  Department that you're setting the rate here, not

         23  setting a cap for the rate that they set, using

         24  their own discretion. We received the rate increase

         25  in the mileage of 50 cents and in the storage of a
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          2  few dollars a day back in 2001, that we've put

          3  requests in writing to John Valles to allow us to

          4  charge that rate and we have not been able to get

          5  permission to do that.

          6                 So, what they were trying to ask you

          7  was if this Committee intends on setting the rate,

          8  and that's the rate that's set, or if you're

          9  intending on setting the maximum rate and leave the

         10  discretion up to them on what that would be.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see.

         12                 Well, this problem just continues to

         13  get more complicated every hearing.

         14                 MR. ROBLES: It does.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         16                 MR. ROBLES: We've been wrestling with

         17  this since 2001 and to this date we still have yet

         18  to get an approval for a new tow slip reflecting the

         19  law that changed in 2001 without even getting to

         20  what we're here today to speak on.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I want to

         22  acknowledge that we've been joined by Council Member

         23  James Sanders, Jr., from Queens.

         24                 I see that a representative from the

         25  Department of Consumer Affairs is here; did you want
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          2  to make a comment about some of this? If you do then

          3  you need to come to the microphone.

          4                 Is there more testimony?

          5                 MR. ROBLES: No. If you have any other

          6  questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are there

          8  questions?

          9                 Mr. Lynn, you have something to add?

         10                 MR. LYNN: One thing if I could,

         11  Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please identify

         13  yourself again.

         14                 MR. LYNN: Yes, Christopher Lynn.

         15                 Chairman, everything is in

         16  perspective, an illegally parked car that is towed

         17  by a Sheriff is now $150. An illegally parked car

         18  that is towed by a marshal in the City of New York

         19  is $150. The City is now going to go to $200.

         20  Everything is in perspective. So, you leave your

         21  car, it's a nuisance. It affects the ability of the

         22  emergency vehicles and fire to get through. They're

         23  performing the same function as the marshal and the

         24  sheriff. The marshal and the sheriff of the City of

         25  New York is getting hundreds of dollars. That's what
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          2  we're talking about. In here we're still talking

          3  about $50, $60, $70. This is basic fairness here.

          4                 In addition to that, so it's clear,

          5  the City Council, the legislative body of the City

          6  of New York has said what the fee should be, and the

          7  Police Department in their discretion has refused to

          8  act on it. An original request is made and they

          9  don't say yes or no, that's a refusal.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand, Mr.

         11  Lynn. And I can assure you, there's nobody on this

         12  side of this furniture that wants to cede its

         13  authority to the Administration, whether it's the

         14  Police Department or otherwise. So, I'm sure that

         15  we're all glad that we're getting this clarity.

         16                 MR. LYNN: Thank you, Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And we may

         18  restructure this bill to reflect that.

         19                 Is it presumptuous to ask the

         20  question whether the Marshal, or the Police

         21  Department, have to get clarification -- have to get

         22  authority from the DCA. I'm not trying to be

         23  humorous here, you're saying the marshal charges

         24  $150.

         25                 MR. LYNN: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you're saying

          3  the Police Department charges --

          4                 MR. LYNN: When they tow your car it's

          5  150, and it's going to 200.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that rate is

          7  set by the Police Department?

          8                 MR. LYNN: The Department of Finance I

          9  suppose issued those regs and they get authority

         10  from the Council to do that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And just out of

         12  curiosity, do we know if the police -- the marshal

         13  has their own tow truck?

         14                 MR. LYNN: It's been privatized. They

         15  do not have their own tow trucks.

         16                 In fact, as I recall as Commissioner

         17  of the Department of Transportation, the entire tow

         18  trucks owned by the Police Department is less than

         19  400.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, when you say

         21  that the Marshal and the Police Department have

         22  privatized it, they go out to companies like your

         23  own?

         24                 MR. LYNN: They go out to companies,

         25  but they collect the fee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. I guess one

          3  thing I'm trying to understand is, do their trucks

          4  have to go past inspection?

          5                 MR. LYNN: I don't know.

          6                 Danny Powers, my expert on this, said

          7  yes, they do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Robles, are you

          9  hired by the Police Department or the City Marshals

         10  to engage in --

         11                 MR. ROBLES: The scofflaw programs?

         12  No.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is there anybody

         14  sitting up there that is?

         15                 MR. ROBLES: Not currently.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is there anybody

         17  here in the audience that is?

         18                 When you say the Marshal and the

         19  Police Department use private towing companies --

         20                 MR. ROBLES: The marshals hire their

         21  own private towing companies to operate with them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: There's got to be a

         23  tow truck company that's licensed by the City of New

         24  York.

         25                 They just don't happen to be

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  represented here.

          3                 MR. ROBLES: Correct. And the Sheriff

          4  puts out an RFP for their towers and they are

          5  private also, and the Police Department for their

          6  parking enforcement throughout the City, they use

          7  their own staffed tow trucks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But none of you

          9  have tried to get into that business?

         10                 MR. ROBLES: Yes, there are some of us

         11  that have been in it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: None of you are in

         13  that business right now?

         14                 MR. ROBLES: Not today, no.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If the marshal is

         16  charging $150 to the driver, how much are they

         17  paying the company?

         18                 MR. ROBLES: That's negotiated

         19  privately I believe, between the Marshal, the

         20  Sheriff, and the towing companies. I believe the RFP

         21  for the Sheriff is a competitive bid.

         22                 I've submitted that in the past and

         23  it is based on the lowest price for the company that

         24  meets their qualifications.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member
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          2  Addabbo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 Gentlemen, thank you very much for

          6  your time and testimony today.

          7                 What would be the approximate

          8  increase in revenue if the increase went through?

          9  Average, approximate?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, I think the

         11  question is if it was all the way up to $70, not a

         12  maximum of, but up to that.

         13                 MR. ROBLES: It depends on the volume

         14  and the particular operator.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Based on your

         16  current volume?

         17                 MR. ROBLES: My particular current

         18  volume, it was, this would be approximately $8,000 a

         19  month at 70 and $12,000 a month at 80.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Obviously to

         21  cover the cost of your increase, the increase in

         22  cost and also a possible increase in the service to

         23  the customer, correct?

         24                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is there anything

          4  else you want to add, someone else want to add a

          5  comment?

          6                 MR. LYNN: Yes, Chairman. One of the

          7  owners has asked me to point out that indeed in DARP

          8  and Rotow there is a mileage, if you get towed to

          9  some place other than the shop it's $4. So, he had

         10  heard your earlier statement that the

         11  differentiation between DARP and Rotow and arterial

         12  was with DARP and Rotow there was no mileage indeed,

         13  and some circumstances there is a mileage under DARP

         14  and Rotow and it's $4.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And is that charge

         16  from the place that you don't want to go to, to

         17  where you do? Or is that right from where they pick

         18  you up?

         19                 MR. SHIFO: The mileage charge only

         20  applies to the DARP program where the --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You need to tell us

         22  again who you are, please?

         23                 MR. SHIFO: George Shifo, Ridge

         24  Transport Systems.

         25                 The mileage charge is only the DARP
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          2  program. Rotation Tow they're in police custody, so

          3  they have to be brought back to the facility.

          4  There's no choice to tow anywhere else.

          5                 The DARP, if the owner or person in

          6  charge of the vehicle that's on the scene can

          7  request that vehicle go anywhere he would like at an

          8  additional charge of $4 per mile.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: An additional

         10  charge from the place where the car is picked up.

         11                 MR. SHIFO: Correct. There is no

         12  mileage  -- the $80 represents the tow back if he

         13  has to go to the hospital or doesn't know where to

         14  bring it, and the vehicle has to come back to our

         15  facility, we're allowed, the $80 includes the first

         16  day of storage and the tow back to our facility.

         17  That's where they give the consumer a little break,

         18  because he doesn't have a choice, or he went to the

         19  ambulance, or doesn't know what he's doing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But on my point, I

         21  guess what I'm trying to get to here is, so, you may

         22  tow my car back to your garage and then I may decide

         23  to have it taken some place else later, and that

         24  would be a fee. But if you just take it while I'm

         25  either going to the hospital or trying to sort out
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          2  businesses, just a straight $80 fee; is that what

          3  you're saying?

          4                 MR. SHIFO: The straight $80 fee is

          5  applied when it comes back to the facility without

          6  the owner wanting to change. But the owner has the

          7  opportunity from the scene, if he gets broken down

          8  in Brooklyn, he can go to Staten Island and get

          9  charged $4 a mile additionally. So that is a more

         10  expensive tow. And all of us, where they have the

         11  same opportunity to do what we do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That sounds like

         13  the price of a new car to me, by the time you add

         14  that up. But, okay, I understand what you're saying.

         15                 Anything else?

         16                 MR. LYNN: A further point of

         17  information concerning the Sheriff Department.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Lynn, would you

         19  please identify yourself.

         20                 MR. LYNN: Christopher Lynn. I beg

         21  your pardon.

         22                 The Sheriff's Department, part of the

         23  Department of Finance, has an RFP to tow vehicles.

         24  They charge the consumer $150. The tow truck

         25  operator gets 90 of that. So, for every vehicle
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          2  that's towed, the Sheriff's Department gets sixty

          3  bucks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, that sounds

          5  like a pretty lucrative business. So, as a tow

          6  trucker, you're getting $90 and all these three

          7  versions, you're only getting either 80 or 70.

          8                 MR. LYNN: I don't know about

          9  lucrative but as an attorney it's questionable,

         10  there's a questionable legality there. So, if

         11  someone hasn't challenged it, they certainly, I

         12  anticipate, will.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you all very

         14  much.

         15                 The next panel, Norman Teitler.  I

         16  didn't get all the names there, so who is Peter

         17  O'Connell? Yes, Mr. O'Connell, I thought you had

         18  been here before. Thank you.

         19                 Who else is here to testify today?

         20  Let me see a show of hands. Just Mr. Rubenfeld, is

         21  it? Well, then since you're the only other person

         22  here to testify, why don't you come up at the same

         23  time.

         24                 I'm going to ask Council Member

         25  Addabbo to chair this portion for a moment for me,
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          2  please.

          3                 But you should begin. Why don't we

          4  start over here with Mr. O'Connell.

          5                 MR. O'CONNELL: Thank you. My name is

          6  Peter O'Connell. I am the attorney for Empire State

          7  Towing Association, TRAA, and the Conference of

          8  North Eastern Towing Associations.

          9                 I submitted some prepared remarks,

         10  and I'm not going to rely upon them in my oral

         11  testimony, I'll let them speak for myself, and I'll

         12  just summarize them in a manner, you know, to get

         13  through this a little more expeditiously.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Greatly

         15  appreciate it.

         16                 MR. O'CONNELL: I'd like to answer a

         17  few of these issues that have been raised

         18  previously. One of them, I think particularly when

         19  Director Valles was talking about the qualifications

         20  to participate in the arterial programs, there was a

         21  considerable omission that he made. They bid

         22  competitively for those, and my understanding is the

         23  going rate for an arterial tow is somewhere in the

         24  neighborhood of $160,000. So, I thought that perhaps

         25  that element should have been brought into part of
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          2  the discussion in some way.

          3                 I do support their request for the

          4  $80 tow, and I agree with the remarks that Mr.

          5  Robles made that that is a rate that is set by the

          6  City Council and not a matter of regulation. I think

          7  that the Police Department's concerns would have

          8  been realized had you gone forward with last year's

          9  bill where the rate did reference back to DCA

         10  regulation. I think this bill cleans that up, and in

         11  my estimation it clearly is a rate that you set, and

         12  it's not one that is a ceiling.

         13                 On the issue of the changing of the

         14  dates, we support the change to the April date. I

         15  just have one observation, as the DCA talked about

         16  meeting the requests of the industry and changing to

         17  April, actually the industry and this is the

         18  Metropolitan Association, and they should speak to

         19  this and not me, they requested that the dates

         20  terminate at the same time, that the driver's

         21  licenses and the business licenses have a common

         22  expiration date. That was not addressed in the bill.

         23                 The Metropolitan Association

         24  processes hundreds of these a year, and I think that

         25  their concern should be at least discussed before

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  you go any further. I think that given their

          3  expertise in this matter, you should give

          4  considerable weight to their position.

          5                 The towing program, or the inspection

          6  program, despite the very sunny response by the

          7  Department as to how successful it is, I'm sure that

          8  everybody in the towing industry will tell you that

          9  it was an unmitigated disaster.

         10                 We all heard the admonitions that you

         11  have to be in before December 1, and they guarantee

         12  that you'll be inspected. Really I think that for

         13  the most part they made no effort to inspect

         14  companies that came in after that date and the vast

         15  majority of them did come in within the first two

         16  weeks of December and not toward the end as they

         17  stated. They also didn't mention that their

         18  inspection station was only open from eight until

         19  two, which is my understanding. I don't know that as

         20  a personal fact.

         21                 The complaints that I got was the

         22  flagrant failing of tow trucks for the painting

         23  standards, and I handed up four photographs, and the

         24  top one, is this still a yellow truck, MGM, that

         25  truck failed the inspection, that truck happened to
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          2  be, I got this from our tow show, they were our

          3  beauty contest winner three years ago, and that

          4  truck was, it was failed because of phone numbers on

          5  the fender and not the door. Also, you'll notice

          6  that the address of the company is on a kickplate

          7  below the door, that was objectionable. They wanted

          8  all the information to be on the door.

          9                 It's like I can see the purpose of

         10  having the lettering. They want trucks to be

         11  identifiable. I would submit that these trucks are

         12  far more identifiable than had they blindly painted

         13  them as requested by the Department, as demanded by

         14  the Department.

         15                 The same thing with the Mike's

         16  Towing, that, too, had a phone number on the fender.

         17                 You can see these trucks have

         18  extremely expensive paint jobs. Hundreds of

         19  thousands of dollars were spent just coming around

         20  to meet their stringent requirements.

         21                 Russo Whitlock was failed because his

         22  address was not on the door. They also objected to

         23  the fact that his DCA number was way back toward the

         24  back wheelwell. Well, the regulations say that the

         25  DCA number should be just forward of the wheelwell,
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          2  they said, well, that was meant for smaller trucks.

          3                 My favorite one is the Staten Island

          4  Towing. It's like here's lurking around corners not

          5  wanting to be seen. The name of his company extends

          6  the entire length of his truck. They said, well,

          7  that's not enough visibility. We want it on the

          8  door.

          9                 They have never imposed those types

         10  of restrictions in the past, and there was no good

         11  reason for them to do so at this time. They have put

         12  requirements on many towers to where in order to

         13  comply with the City regs, they could in all

         14  likelihood fail federal inspection requirements.

         15                 Federal inspection requirements

         16  require lettering to be visible from a distance of

         17  50 feet. For that reason, most of them had the

         18  larger lettering, the City only requires lettering

         19  to be an inch and a half and I don't believe that

         20  that is visible at that distance.

         21                 My final point is, nothing was said

         22  earlier today about what efforts, if any, DCA is

         23  making to fill the Tow Advisory Board. I, in a

         24  letter to the Commissioner and before this

         25  Committee, mentioned that they haven't reached out
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          2  to any associations for recommendations.

          3                 My experience is that when someone

          4  wants a recommendation for someone who is reputable

          5  in an industry, they will go to associations. We

          6  never got a call.

          7                 I submitted a list of six people that

          8  I would recommend to the Commissioner, and I hope

          9  she would consider them. Only three of those happen

         10  to be members of my clients association, by the way.

         11                 Lastly, at another time, and I'll

         12  just touch on this briefly, I have field a Freedom

         13  of Information Request with the Department. We're

         14  hearing about what a renegade this industry is, how

         15  they're rampantly ripping off consumers.

         16                 I requested copies of every LD6

         17  that's been issued since 1999, and I want you to see

         18  the nature of these types of complaints, and I think

         19  that we will find that in most circumstances the

         20  majority of them are not consumer based. The ones

         21  that are consumer based are all in the DARP and the

         22  Rotow Program and on the private trespass towing.

         23                 And I think that this will warrant a

         24  re-examination of a lot of the types of businesses

         25  that are licensed by the Department.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

          4  you, Mr. O'Connell.

          5                 Why don't we take all the testimony,

          6  then we'll go to questions.

          7                 MR. TEITLER: My name is Norman

          8  Teitler. I'm an Executive Director of the

          9  Metropolitan New York Towing and Auto Body

         10  Association.

         11                 First let me deal with the bill

         12  that's before the Committee raising the rates on the

         13  arterial highway.

         14                 We're in favor of that bill. It is

         15  about time that the Council recognized that rates be

         16  raised because the operating expenses over the past

         17  years have gone up tremendously.

         18                 Mr. O'Connell mentioned in passing,

         19  but it wasn't mentioned when the arterial towers

         20  were sitting here that when they're picked by the

         21  City, they are obligated every quarter, every three

         22  months, to pay a franchise fee with the City of New

         23  York, so besides all of their other quirks of doing

         24  business, they pay a substantial, it's in the tens

         25  of thousands of dollars to the City, each year

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  simply to have the opportunity to be on the roadway,

          3  and they pay that whether they make money or they

          4  don't make money, okay?

          5                 Since 1987, neither the Police

          6  Department historically, nor the Department of

          7  Consumer Affairs has ever come before this Council,

          8  and suggested any rates. They have always taken the

          9  position that their job to enforce a rate, that

         10  there is no overcharges.

         11                 We set a ceiling because of I'm an

         12  arterial tower or I'm a DARP tower, and I happened

         13  upon a car and there's a woman in a car with a young

         14  baby, and she says, I'm sorry, I don't have $70, I'd

         15  like you to take me to the nearest gas station, I

         16  only have $55. They have a right to say, okay, we'll

         17  be consumer friendly and take you for $55.

         18                 We have to set a rate. The rate is

         19  set by law in the Administrative Code and it's

         20  called Section 20-509. That's the DARP rate. It's

         21  set in a separate section, but the storage and the

         22  towing rates are set in 2509.

         23                 The Commissioner of Consumer Affairs

         24  then mirrors that rate in a regulation which is a

         25  rule of the City of New York, which would then be
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          2  exactly the same.

          3                 What will happen, I expect, if we

          4  raise this rate to 70 or 80, that at some future

          5  time in the City Record there will be a rule change

          6  proposed, there will be a public hearing, if anybody

          7  wants, and the Commissioner's rules will reflect

          8  whatever rate the Council sets. In whoever's good

          9  intelligence in the past (sic), whenever it was,

         10  rate-setting was left solely to be set by the

         11  Council, and then signed into law by the Mayor.

         12                 The one issue that was raised when

         13  they were sitting here was that these towers who are

         14  on the arterial highway, have been by law, if you

         15  read their par, which is their legal, in essence

         16  it's not a contract but basically their contract

         17  with the City of New York, they have been allowed

         18  to, by law this Council would have allowed them to

         19  charge more money for mileage and storage only.

         20                 Our association, many individually,

         21  have written to the Police Commissioner, and asked

         22  for permission to do so.

         23                 The Police Department doesn't answer.

         24  They don't say yes and they don't say no. The towers

         25  are afraid to charge what's legally in the
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          2  Administrative Code of the City of New York because

          3  they don't want someone to say, well, we didn't give

          4  you permission, and now you jeopardize your

          5  contract. But somewhere, and I suggest to the

          6  Committee Chairman, that simply we draft a letter to

          7  the Police Commissioner and say, because if this

          8  bill passes, it doesn't take effect at least 90 days

          9  from when it's signed into law.

         10                 If they're allowed because they need

         11  relief now, why won't the Police Department allow

         12  them to charge what's in the law, or say we have no

         13  jurisdiction, it's in the law, charge what the law

         14  allows. But somebody has to get an answer and it's

         15  unfortunate that all the uniforms that we saw

         16  sitting here at the beginning of this meeting,

         17  seemingly disappeared into thin air, when it was

         18  industry's time to voice our complaints to the

         19  Council. So, we have tried to get responses, and we

         20  can't.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Teitler?

         22                 MR. TEITLER: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I know that someone

         24  is here representing the Department of Consumer

         25  Affairs, is there anybody here representing the
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          2  Police Department? Thank you.

          3                 MR. TEITLER: Okay.

          4                 In regard to the other bill about

          5  changing the renewal dates of licenses, we have no

          6  objection to changing the dates of tow truck company

          7  licensing renewals from December 31st to April 30th.

          8  It was originally going to be in October, I had

          9  conversations over the telephone, we didn't have an

         10  in-person meeting with Jonathan Mintz, who is Deputy

         11  Commissioner of Department of Consumer Affairs, we

         12  indicated why we felt that they should be moved up,

         13  and at his -- I guess as a result of that

         14  conversation the Administration changed the date to

         15  April 30th.

         16                 We do however believe that tow truck

         17  drivers' licenses should expire at the same time.

         18  There's almost no other licensed category that

         19  expires at April 30th. That's why we picked that

         20  date, because Consumer Affairs basically wouldn't be

         21  overworked, there wouldn't be a tremendous amount of

         22  licenses coming in to be renewed, and the reason is

         23  very simple: If I own a towing company, it's my

         24  responsibility if my driver is unlicensed, if he's

         25  found in a truck, not only does he get a violation,
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          2  I get a violation because I'm responsible for the

          3  acts of my employees.

          4                 When you change the licensing period

          5  and you move them very far apart, it sometimes slips

          6  by without my being aware, should I check my

          7  drivers, make sure he renewed.

          8                 If I know I have to renew my company

          9  license, know that everybody who works for me and

         10  drives a truck has to renew at the same time, I

         11  instinctively will say let me see your new license,

         12  let me see your receipt from DCA, or let me see some

         13  proof that you're renewed.

         14                 If it was a simple violation where I

         15  was held responsible and paid the $50 fine, that

         16  would be another story. But most of these fines

         17  start at $500 and if they happen more than once,

         18  they go to 1,000, 2,000 dollars.

         19                 So, we're suggesting, yes, let's help

         20  DCA and move it out of December, but let's bring it

         21  for companies and drivers to April 30th. I do not

         22  think it will be too much of a chore for DCA to

         23  process, and it would be much more helpful for

         24  industry.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MR. TEITLER: Now let's go to the

          4  reinspection program.

          5                 If every licensed towing company had

          6  renewed their licenses and paid the money by

          7  December 1st, there would have been no conceivable

          8  way they all would have been inspected before the

          9  end of the year.

         10                 It is lucky for DCA that people

         11  waited, because now they have a scape goat to say,

         12  well, some people didn't have the financial

         13  wherewithal, waited til the middle of end of

         14  December.

         15                 There are people who renewed in

         16  December who still haven't been inspected. There

         17  were people who went to the inspection station

         18  yesterday, had their trucks passed inspection, and

         19  the inspectors didn't have the medallions because

         20  they forgot to bring them from 42 Broadway. Which

         21  means the following: I spent an entire -- I'm an

         22  owner or a driver. I spent four hours driving from

         23  my place of business to the inspection station,

         24  waiting to be inspected and driving back.

         25                 As an owner, I paid for gas, tolls
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          2  and labor. I haven't earned a nickel because the

          3  truck can't operate.

          4                 Now they didn't have the medallions.

          5  This is not just yesterday. This has happened over

          6  and over and over again.

          7                 Now I have to wait three days. I have

          8  to call a woman at the Department of Consumer

          9  Affairs to reschedule a date.

         10                 Before I go with my truck, I have to

         11  make a trip in person to 42 Broadway to pick up a

         12  letter, carry it back to my place of business,

         13  because that letter must be in my truck when my

         14  truck goes back to the inspection station.

         15                 Think about what I just said to you.

         16  We're talking about ten, 12 hours of time out of

         17  somebody's business for one truck, and if you

         18  multiply it, it becomes over and over a tremendous

         19  amount of money.

         20                 The inspection station in Brooklyn

         21  has several bays. Trucks in one bay would pass or

         22  fail while the truck in the bay right next to it

         23  would pass or fail for exactly the same reason. They

         24  would have a truck where everything was the same,

         25  and the two trucks, the truck in bay 1 would fail
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          2  and the truck in bay 2 would pass, simply because we

          3  had different inspectors.

          4                 DCA waited til almost December 20th

          5  to decide they were falling behind and decided to

          6  now train additional inspectors.

          7                 But what happened is that during the

          8  month of January, and it's still continuing, DCA has

          9  cost business owners in this industry thousands upon

         10  thousands of dollars and in some cases people have

         11  gone out of business. They have four people out of

         12  business.

         13                 The Tow Advisory Board, which is

         14  mandated by law set by this Council, should have

         15  been comprised by this Commissioner almost two years

         16  ago when she took office.

         17                 There was no Tow Advisory Board as of

         18  today.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

         20  you, Mr. Teitler. Would you just sum up, please?

         21                 MR. TEITLER: As of today, if there

         22  had been, they would have met, it would have been

         23  decided a long time before we could have advised the

         24  industry, we could have resolved some of these

         25  problems. This Committee has to make sure that DCA
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          2  forms a board so there's some dialogue on an

          3  official basis between industry and the

          4  Administration.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

          6  you.

          7                 Mr. Rubenfeld.

          8                 MR. RUBENFELD: Yes. You heard from

          9  the Administration, and they gave you their side of

         10  the coin. You're now going to hear from the horse's

         11  mouth, I am a tow operator and a tow driver.

         12  Although the way I've been treated lately by DCA, I

         13  think I got the wrong end of the animal to describe

         14  myself.

         15                 My name is Paul Rubenfeld, and I am

         16  the de facto chairman of the New York City Tow

         17  Advisory Board.

         18                 I would be more than pleased to serve

         19  in that capacity again, if and when the DCA

         20  establishes a new board.

         21                 I have often been described as an

         22  advocate of fairness to the tow industry by the

         23  government.

         24                 I have included in my presentation a

         25  package sample of a letter which demonstrates how
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          2  the interaction between the Tow Advisory Board and

          3  the Commissioner of DCA solves problems and prevents

          4  future complications, such as this dilemma we now

          5  have with the inspections of tow trucks. I therefore

          6  urge the DCA to reinstate the Board as required by

          7  Administrative Code 20-526.

          8                 I am dismayed to speak before you

          9  again today, because since our last meeting, DCA has

         10  managed to make our lives miserable.

         11                 The towing industry in New York City

         12  had for the most part come to a screeching halt July

         13  1st, 2004. Tow men are bursting with frustration at

         14  the DCA. Its rules dictate results that almost never

         15  make sense. Hundreds of previously licensed tow

         16  trucks became illegal due to the inability of DCA to

         17  complete a task of tow truck inspections.

         18                 It has become blatantly obvious that

         19  the stated commitment made by the DCA in this room,

         20  to do its part to ensure by a timely renewal has

         21  fallen on its face. The prophecy has been fulfilled.

         22                 Yes, Mr. Chair, we told you so. Had

         23  there been an advisory board in place, this would

         24  not have occurred. Under the previous

         25  administration, there would have been discussions

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  between the Department and the industry on how to

          3  effect a smooth transition. Instead we were

          4  presented with poor planning, understaffing and a

          5  myriad of assorted errors, which resulted in the

          6  abysmal failure of the process to inspect and renew

          7  all tow truck licenses before the expiration on

          8  December 31st, 2003.

          9                 The fault is with the inspection

         10  process, not with the licensees. Yes, Mr. Chair, we

         11  told you so. Before the end of the first week of

         12  December 2003, I paid over $4,000 to be licensed for

         13  the years of 2004 and 2005.

         14                 However, I was given an appointment

         15  to complete the inspection of my tow truck on

         16  January 13th, 2004. I find myself going to 42

         17  Broadway for a permission letter, then back to

         18  Queens to get my truck to go to Brooklyn for my

         19  inspection. I then went back to Queens, then back to

         20  42 Broadway for another permission letter, back to

         21  Queens to pick up my truck again to go to Brooklyn

         22  for a reinspection.

         23                 Does the DCA realize the expense that

         24  they have cost me and man hours, toll, fuel expense,

         25  to comply with their mandate to bring all my trucks
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          2  to Brooklyn.

          3                 When for the money I pay them in

          4  license fees, they should have sent an inspector to

          5  my place, as they did for so many favorite

          6  operators.

          7                 Does it seem more efficient to have

          8  the inspectors go out in the field to inspect,

          9  rather than to have 2,000 tow trucks journey to

         10  Brooklyn? I am not alone. Many members of this

         11  industry have had similar experiences. Some suffer

         12  seizure of their trucks incurring costly impound

         13  fees and fines. This has been a very humiliating

         14  experience for all of us. Yes, Mr. Chair, we told

         15  you so.

         16                 We were baffled by the fact that not

         17  one of us was provided with a written list of all

         18  the necessary criteria to pass inspection. Each

         19  inspector appeared to have his own standards as to

         20  what passed and what failed the inspection. Some

         21  trucks failed because the phone number was on the

         22  front fender. Other trucks passed with the phone

         23  number on the front fender.

         24                 While some trucks failed with the

         25  medallion positioned at the rear of the truck, other
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          2  trucks fail with the medallion placed in the middle

          3  of the truck.

          4                 I had to remove my medallions by

          5  drilling four holes here, then remounting it, and

          6  again by drilling four holes there.

          7                 My truck looked like a giant Swiss

          8  cheese with all the holes they made me drill in

          9  there.

         10                 Out of three tow trucks, each painted

         11  lettered and presented exactly the same, one

         12  inspector determined that the lettering is too

         13  small, another inspector wanted the rate lettering

         14  higher up. One said lower down and so on. Tow trucks

         15  were failed on minutia, when they should be failed

         16  only on serious defects.

         17                 This was like a late night TV skit

         18  going to the inspections.

         19                 There was no uniformity in the

         20  parameters for passing. Yes, Mr. Chair, we told you

         21  so.

         22                 The arbitrary decision to

         23  unilaterally go forward with that procedure broke

         24  the bond of trust between the tow industry and the

         25  Department of Consumer Affairs.
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          2                 The refusal of this Committee to

          3  insist on a minimum 30-day extension of this

          4  deadline to complete these inspections has caused

          5  this catch-22. Yes, Mr. Chairman, we told you so.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rubenfeld,

          7  you're going to have to wrap up, please.

          8                 MR. RUBENFELD: Okay.

          9                 The Police Department was made aware

         10  that many tow trucks would not have the new orange

         11  medallion by the deadline of December 31st, 2003.

         12                 Operators order 52, which is

         13  attached, dated 12/9/03 is enclosed. Does this not

         14  demonstrate extremely poor judgment on the part of

         15  the DCA, knowingly exposing hundreds of trucks as

         16  unlicensed, despite having collected thousands of

         17  dollars in licensing fees, because it is a very

         18  faulty process.

         19                 Also, the egregious practice of

         20  chasing has proliferated to the point where I and

         21  many of our colleagues are afraid to accept the DARP

         22  call. We fear that we might be beaten or shot

         23  because the unsolicited responding chaser has

         24  threatened us and warned us not to show on the

         25  accident scene.
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          2                 The police on the scene will not

          3  issue a violation or summons, but rather allow the

          4  chaser to grab the job. At least one tow man has

          5  already been shot. In the interest of public safety,

          6  it behooves the Police Department to retrain

          7  officers in the various aspects of the law regarding

          8  wreck chasing.

          9                 Last night on channel 7, 5:00 p.m.

         10  news, a perfect example of chasing was exposed. A

         11  motorist involved in an accident was solicited and

         12  ultimately towed by an unlicensed tow truck. He

         13  encountered many difficulties, which would not have

         14  occurred if there had been a licensed tow truck

         15  summoned by the Police Department or if the Police

         16  Department had prevented this chaser from ensnaring

         17  this innocent motorist.

         18                 It's no surprise to find an

         19  inordinate number of refusals by the DARP

         20  participants because it has been dangerous to

         21  respond to a DARP call as mentioned above.

         22                 And when we respond quite often, the

         23  only thing left --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rubenfeld, I'm

         25  going to have to cut you off in about 30 seconds.
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          2                 MR. RUBENFELD: All right, I will

          3  renew my recommendations, if you'll allow me.

          4                 I recommend to the Consumer Affairs

          5  Committee, the Department of Consumer Affairs and

          6  the New York City Police Department five things:

          7                 Number 1, expedite the reinstitution

          8  of the Tow Advisory Board.

          9                 Number 2, replace the failed DARP

         10  system with a better plan modeled after SARD or as

         11  an alternative, perform a much needed and long

         12  overdue major overhaul and modification of DARP, and

         13  in the interest of public safety, devise a strategy

         14  to eliminate once and for all wreck chasing. Combine

         15  your efforts to impound the really unlicensed tow

         16  trucks, not the trucks to which licensees are paid

         17  and inspections are pending; and provide a written

         18  rational description of all necessary requirements,

         19  including lettering and position of medallions for

         20  each different type of tow truck, to all tow truck

         21  owners, and distribute that to the tow operators and

         22  to the inspectors for the DCA.

         23                 I honestly believe that the tow truck

         24  inspections have destroyed the efficiency of the

         25  DCA, increased its personnel cost, increased the
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          2  time necessary for processing tow truck licenses;

          3  are these the goals DCA expects to attain?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

          5  much. Thank you.

          6                 MR. RUBENFELD: I hope that next time

          7  we meet I won't have to say I told you so.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, all.

         10                 I would ask that the -- Mr. Teitler.

         11                 MR. TEITLER: I'm going to digress

         12  just a second, but there's an issue that just arose

         13  this week has to be brought to this Committee's

         14  attention.

         15                 At the end of 1992, the beginning of

         16  1993, a problem arose that towers from New York

         17  City, licensed towers who were going into the town

         18  of Hempstead and North Hempstead and Yonkers, were

         19  having their truck seized. In other words, if a

         20  Yonkers resident broke down in the Bronx and he

         21  called a local towing company from the Bronx who was

         22  licensed to tow him back to Yonkers, that truck

         23  would go into Westchester County and the Yonkers

         24  Police Department would seize that truck because

         25  they weren't licensed in Yonkers, it started to
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          2  happen in Nassau County too.

          3                 And then what happened, the

          4  Commissioner --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Unfortunately, we

          6  don't have the time to go into that. We are here to

          7  talk about two specific bills, and I think we've

          8  done that.

          9                 MR. TEITLER: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I was hoping that

         11  Mr. Rubenfeld would stay on point. We have

         12  opportunities to discuss other problems of towing at

         13  another time.

         14                 We, the Committee, I'm certainly

         15  going to reach out as the Chair and speak to the

         16  Police Department, at the very least to make sure

         17  that they are in every circumstance checking to make

         18  sure that the tow truck on the scene is licensed.

         19  I'm not asking for a response, Mr. Rubenfeld, but I

         20  find it hard to believe that there are unlicensed

         21  drivers picking up cars. If there's a cop on the

         22  scene, the first thing he ought to do after he finds

         23  out if people are safe, or need assistance, is to

         24  make sure that the car, the truck is licensed. But

         25  those are issues that we could look at at another
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          2  time.

          3                 Thank you all very much for your

          4  testimony.

          5                 I wanted to ask Mr. Robles to come

          6  back for just a moment because I had two quick

          7  questions before we wrap up this hearing.

          8                 My counsel has reminded me that, yes,

          9  we are going to look at the issue of Tow Advisory

         10  Board, and I would encourage, it's my understanding

         11  that the Commissioner of Consumer Affairs needs to

         12  be proactive in getting this Advisory Board moving,

         13  even though all five members of it are appointed by

         14  the Police Commissioner.

         15                 Just a moment.

         16                 Okay, I'm sorry, I was corrected. The

         17  Tow Advisory Board, which is convened by the

         18  Commissioner, am I right about that? We'll be having

         19  another hearing probably the end of March on this.

         20  We'd like to see some activity, or if we need to say

         21  that that Board needs to be reconstituted or

         22  abandoned, I need to know what we're doing with

         23  that, or whether we've had a meeting, because

         24  there's too many questions coming up that I think

         25  could be addressed more appropriately, and we'd like
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          2  to hear from the Advisory Board, if it has a purpose

          3  to function. If not, let's get rid of it.

          4                 Am I clear? Thank you.

          5                 Mr. Robles, in terms of the arterial

          6  tows, for my own sake, you're assigned by the Police

          7  Department for sections, right?

          8                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, irrespective of

         10  whether or not you pick up anybody, or anybody

         11  breaks down, which in the perfect world, of course

         12  nobody would break down, but you are having to drive

         13  up and down this road all day long, 24 hours a day?

         14                 MR. ROBLES: Twenty-four hours a day,

         15  seven days a week.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Whether or not

         17  anybody breaks down?

         18                 MR. ROBLES: Christmas, Thanksgiving,

         19  New Years, every day.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Right, okay.

         21                 And the only time you get paid for

         22  that is when somebody breaks down and then you

         23  assist them in getting off of the highway?

         24                 MR. ROBLES: Yes. And in addition to

         25  that we have to pay a franchise fee quarterly. Just
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          2  to give you a round about --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry, what is

          4  the round-about fee?

          5                 MR. ROBLES: A franchise fee is paid

          6  to the Police Department. So, the successful

          7  applicant for the arterial tow segment has to pay a

          8  quarterly fee that's approximately $10,000 per

          9  segment, per quarter.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ten-thousand

         11  dollars per segment per quarter? Forty-thousand

         12  dollars a year?

         13                 MR. ROBLES: Some segments are more

         14  expensive, some segments are less expensive. That

         15  amount is set by the Police Commissioner.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's arbitrarily

         17  set by the Police Commissioner?

         18                 MR. ROBLES: Prior to applying in the

         19  request for proposal, it's listed, the fee. So, I

         20  would know, if I'm applying for a segment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So that is part of

         22  your cost?

         23                 MR. ROBLES: That is part of my cost

         24  in addition to what I had brought to light earlier.

         25  We do have quarterly payments. Obviously someone
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          2  with five segments would pay more than someone with

          3  one segment, so you pay on a per segment. That's due

          4  quarterly, and it's payable to the Police

          5  Department.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And so we've had

          7  this hearing and we've discussed this before, and am

          8  I wrong, but this is the first time I've heard about

          9  that amount of money that you have to put out?

         10                 MR. ROBLES: Yes. I have a lot of

         11  expenses and I left that one out in error.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, that's a big

         13  error.

         14                 MR. ROBLES: It's a big error, it's a

         15  big expense also.

         16                 We do have different, like you said,

         17  we have to do this 24 hours seven days a week.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have an

         19  idea, I wish the Police Department were here to

         20  testify; are you able to testify on their behalf,

         21  sir?

         22                 Why do you have to pay the Police

         23  Department a fee, do you know?

         24                 MR. ROBLES: I believe the fee is to

         25  cover the expenses related to the Police Department
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          2  administrating the arterial tow program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you

          4  very much. We've got a lot more work to do here.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. ROBLES: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Unless I see

          8  anybody else insisting on testifying, this hearing

          9  is adjourned. Thank you very much.

         10                 (Written testimony read into the

         11  record.)

         12

         13  Written Testimony Of:

         14  Antoanela Vaccaro

         15  Manager

         16  Government Affairs

         17  Automobile Club of New York, Inc.

         18

         19  Dear Council Member Reed:

         20                 The Automobile Club of New York,

         21  which serves 1.3 million members, strongly opposes

         22  the proposed legislation increasing the basic rate

         23  authorized by the City for road service on the

         24  arterial roadways of New York City.

         25                 As you may know, the City prohibits
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          2  motorists from calling their own tow truck company

          3  when their vehicle becomes disabled on an arterial

          4  highway. Elsewhere, motorists are allowed to "call

          5  their own man" and, because non-consensual towing

          6  rates are unregulated, are free to negotiate towing

          7  rates. Given the fact that motorists have no choice

          8  but to use the services of City authorized tow

          9  companies on arterial highways, we believe that this

         10  proposed 40 percent increase over the current $50

         11  initial rate is unfair.

         12                 We appreciate that arterial highway

         13  service providers in New York City have not been

         14  granted a rate increase in over a decade. However,

         15  because motorists are prohibited from contacting

         16  their own tow service provider, we believe that City

         17  officials must fulfill their obligations to protect

         18  consumers and, in our opinion, the increase

         19  authorized by this legislation represents a windfall

         20  to franchised towers and a burden to consumers who

         21  have no choice but to accept the service of the

         22  authorized tow company.

         23                 When the tow law was enacted, the

         24  Council declared that the towing of vehicles is a

         25  matter affecting public interest, and that the
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          2  purpose of controlling rates was to safeguard the

          3  public against fraud, exorbitant rates and other

          4  abuses. We urge the Council to give priority to the

          5  public interest by rejecting this proposal.

          6                 Very truly yours, Antoanela Vaccaro,

          7  Manager, Government Affairs.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 6th day of February 2004.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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